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The Rothschild Group

N M Rothschild & Sons Limited ("NMR") is part of the Rothschild Group which is one of the world's largest independent financial
advisory groups, employing approximately 2,800 people in 40 countries around the world. We provide strategic, M&A, wealth
management and fundraising advice and services to governments, companies and individuals worldwide.

North America Europe and The Middle East
Los Angeles Abu Dhabi Doha Lisbon Prague
Mexico City Amsterdam Dubai London Sofia
New York Athens Frankfurt Luxembourg  Stockholm
Reno Barcelona Geneva . Madrid Tel Aviv
Toronto Birmingham Guernsey Manchester Warsaw
Washington © Brussels " Istanbul Milan Zurich
Bucharest Kiev Moscow
Budapest Leeds Paris
South America : Asia Pacific
Santiago Auckland Mumbai
Sao Paulo ] Beijing Seoul
Hanoi - Shanghai
Hong Kong Singapore
Africa Jakarta . Sydney |
Johannesburg Kuala Lumpur  Tokyo
Manila Wellington
Melbourne
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Strategic report

Principal activities

N M Rothschild & Sons Limited ("NMR" or “the Company") is
the main UK operating entity of the wider Rothschild Group
which is consolidated under Paris Orléans, the French listed
parent company.The main activities of the Company and its
subsidiary undertakings (together'the NMR Group”) are:

= Global Financial Advisory, where Rothschild's business is a
world leader in the provision of impartial, expert advice and
execution services to governments, corporations, institutions
and.individuals. Alongside our UK advisory business, NMR
owns 50% of Rothschild Europe BV and 100% of Rothschild
Australia Limited. The remaining 50% of Rothschild Europe
BV is owned by Rothschild et Cie Banque, the Paris Orléans
Group's principal operating business in France.

®  Asset management, principally in the area of Debt Fund
Management, for a number of CLO, leveraged debt and
mezzanine debt vehicles..

= Banking and Asset Finance, where the NMR Group offers
services in private client banking, commercial lending, asset
finance and treasury. This includes the provision of asset
financing to companies and local authorities by NMR's Five
Arrows Leasing subsidiaries. The legacy commercial loan
book continues to be managed down.

NMR Group’s strategy continues to focus on developing our
advisory and asset management businesses while reducing
legacy balance sheet risks.

Further information on the Rothschild and Paris Orléans Group
can be found on the corporate websites www.rothschild.com
and www.paris-orleans.com.

Results overview

The consolidated profit before tax for the year to 31 March
2015 has increased to £77.0m, an improvement of £22.4m
(419) on the prior year. This improvement is primarily due to
a very good performance across the Global Financial Advisory
business for which fees increased by 26%.

The Rothschild Group's Global Financial Advisory business
continues to be ranked number | in Europe by number of deals
and is one of the top ranked global advisory businesses.

The Debt Fund Management business continues to develop
with assets under management of €1.5bn at the year end-after
the successful close of the second Contego CLO at €360m and
first close for Oberon Il at €250m.
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Key Performance Indicators (£m) 2015 2014
Profit before tax 770 54.6
Internal leverage ratio® 1.6 1.9
PRA Liquidity Coverage Ratio — 3 mths 193% 173%
Total Capital Ratio 17:1% . 16.7%

*Total assets (excluding cash equivalents and government securities) over total equity

In Banking, the Group continues to expand the Five Arrows
asset finance business with further small bolt-on acquisitions and
organic growth. Good progress is being made managing down
the legacy commercial lending book.

Overall, this resulted in a 20% improvement in total operating

-income and this increased activity resulted in a rise of 17% in
. operating expenses.

- The results are after impairment losses on loans and advances

and debt and equity securities of £12.3m, mainly relating to
legacy exposures in Eastern Europe which were affected by
the Ukraine conflict and fully provided for: This compares to
the prior year's credit impairments of £5.8m and goodwill
impairments of £5.4m. )

The tax charge includes a £6.5m provision against deferred

tax assets following the UK's enactment of bank loss relief
restrictions, partly offset by a £1.9m credit relating to prior year
tax adjustments.The prior year tax charge included a £4.0m
impact on deferred tax assets from the UK corporation tax rate .
reducing to 20% in 2015.

Balance sheet

The year has seen further progress in reducing balance sheet
risks with total assets down £201m to £1,639m.The Group's
leverage ratio, adjusted to exclude cash equivalents and high
quality government securities, has again improved to 1.6 times.
The balance sheet reduction has focused on managing down
the legacy commercial lending book and this year has seen

a further significant fall in loans and advances to customers
and available-for-sale debt securities which reduced by 12%
to £505m. '



Strategic report

Funding and liquidity

At the year-end 45% of the balance sheet was held with the
UK central bank or in short-term advances to banks. The
Group's deposit base includes Rothschild Reserve, a fixed term
retail deposit product for UK residents, two offerings of which
mature in the period to September 2016. The Group has
continued to make offerings which have enabled, and should
continue to enable, the Group to retain a comfortable liquidity
coverage ratio well in excess of regulatory requirements.

Since the balance sheet date, a fellow subsidiary of Paris
Orléans which owns New Court, our London headquarters,
has successfully refinanced its loan facilities for 20 years. As
part of this refinancing, NMR agreed to extend the lease of
the building for a further 5 years and benefited from a £25.0m
return of capital from that fellow subsidiary.

Further information regarding the Group's liquidity risk is
provided in note 2.4.

Capital and dividends

Over the course of the year, total equity has increased by
£12.0m after the payment of a £13.0m interim dividend.
No final dividend is being proposed. The Group's total capital
ratio at 31 March 2015 under CRD [V rules has improved to
17.1% and continues to be well above regulatory requirements
despite the impact of increased capital deductions under the
new CRD IV environment. Details of the Group's regulatory
capital requirements are disclosed in note 2.6.

Governance and risk
management

The NMR Group is an integral part of the wider Paris Orléans
Group and, as such, the governance and risk management
framework operates within the overall Paris Oriéans Group
structure, while ensuring the requirements of the NMR Group
are fully covered. The key governance committees to which the
NMR Board has delegated authority are summarised on page 10.

The Chief Risk Officer co-ordinates policy and promotes the
development and maintenance of effective risk management
procedures throughout the PO Group. Alongside this, our
internal audit team reviews the internal contro! framework and
reports its findings to the PO Group Audit Committee.

The key uncertainties to which the Group is exposed are

the macroeconomic conditions in the markets in which we
operate as well as changes in the regulatory environment.The
key risks continue to be credit, market, liquidity, pension fund,
regulatory and reputational and other operational risks. Further
information regarding financial risk is disclosed in note 2 of
the financial statements.These risks are closely monitored and
controlled as part of the overall risk controls and are taken
into account in the Board's periodic assessment of capital and
liquidity adequacy (including the Individual Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process (“ICAAP") and the Individual Liquidity
Adequacy Assessment (“ILAA™). For a business such as ours,
loss of key personnel! is a material risk which the Group

seeks to mitigate through training, career development and
remuneration policies.

By Order of the Board

gt |

Nigel Higgins, Chief Executive Officer
New Court, St Swithin's Lane, London EC4N 8AL

22 June 2015
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Report of the Directors

The Directors present their Directors’ report and financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2015.An overview of the
business and its performance is included in the Strategic report.

Corporate responsibility

The Group is committed to supporting the principle of equal
opportunities and opposes all forms of unlawful or unfair
discrimination on the grounds of colour, race, nationality, ethnic
origin, gender, marital status, disability, religion, age or sexual
orientation. The Group’s aim is to recruit, train and promote the
best person for the job and to create a working environment
free from unlawful discrimination, victimisation and harassment,
and in which all employees are treated with dignity and respect.

The Group is committed to supporting charities, both in the
areas in which it operates and in the wider community. The
Charities Committee was established in 1975 to consider the
hundreds of requests received every year from charities seeking
financial support.The sum of £297,000 (2014: £355,000)

was charged against the profits of the Company during the
year in respect of gifts for charitable purposes. No political
contributions were made during the year (2014: £nil).

Typical beneficiaries continue to include organisations
concerned with elderly people, healthcare, social welfare
and education. Requests for support from staff in respect of
charitable causes with which they are associated, or have an
involvement, are actively encouraged.

Rothschild in the Community

Rothschild in the Community builds on the wider Rothschild
Group's long history of supporting the communities in which it
operates, providing opportunities for our people to volunteer
in disadvantaged areas close to our offices.We seek to invest
in long term partnerships with schools and community
organisations in ways which have a measurable impact on

the lives of others, believing that a successful community
programme benefits our company as well as the community.

Through our partnerships with three local schools we have
this year been able to help more than 50 students aged 14-18
to plot a path to success through our Gifted and Talented
Mentoring and Work Experience Programme.We have
provided insights into the world of work to many more young
peop]e through a series of Careers Days, run in partnership
with educational charities Teach First and Future First, and this
year has also seen the Group seeking to promote employment
opportunities to local school-leavers, with four young people -
keen to get a head start on their careers instead of going to
university having been recruited into entry-level roles.
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" Alongside our well-established support for young people,

we have begun 1o introduce a wider range of mentoring and
coaching opportunities in recognition of the impact we are able
to make when we share our skills at organisational level

as well as on the front line. Our volunteers have recently piloted
schemes supporting the professional development of teachers,
charity managers and social entrepreneurs.

In 2014-15 more than 50% of London staff volunteered through
Rothschild in the Community, and we invested almost 4000
hours in community projects. Our work with schools has been
recognised for the sixth year running through Business in the
Community's Awards for Excellence.

Environmental management

We acknowledge that the Group’s operations have an impact
on the environment, particularly in respect of energy and water
use, business travel, generation of waste, and the greenhouse

gases associated with all of these.We report at Paris Orléans

Group level against these key indicators. Additionally, in the UK,
we report our energy use annually to the Erivironment Agency
through the CRC Energy Efficiency Scheme.

In the office we pursue a range of initiatives designed to reduce
waste and promote environmental awareness. Our green
initiatives include a comprehensive mixed recycling scheme,
food composting in our kitchens, provision of filtered tap water
in place of bottled water in meeting rooms, reuse of printer
toner cartridges, purchase of recycled paper and printers set

to print double-sided as standard. A network of volunteer
Green Champions helps to drive day-to-day improvements and
encourages the roll-out of new initiatives. One such initiative this
year was the introduction of reusable ‘Keep Cups'in our cafe,
reducing our consumption of disposable coffee cups.

Beyond the office, we are supporters of the London Wildlife
Trust. This year 87 volunteers took part in conservation-based
volunteering days at sites of special wildlife interest in London,
helping to preserve the habitats of endangered species and
safeguarding important green spaces for future generations.



Report of the Directors

 Staff

During the year the Group continued with its long-established
policy of providing employees with information on matters

of concern to them and on developments within the Group
by a series of notices to staff. The interest of all staff in the
performance of the Group is realised through the Group's
profit sharing scheme in which staff at all levels participate.

The recruitment, training, career development and promotion
of disabled persons is fully and fairly considered having regard
to the aptitudes and abilities of each individual. Efforts are made

" to enable employees who become disabled during employment
to continue their career with'the Group and, if necessary,
appropriate training is provided.

Directors

The Directors who held office during the year were as follows:

Peter Smith (Non-executive Chairman)

David de Rothschild - resigned | May 2014 |

Anthony Alt (Deputy Chairman)

Nigel Higgins (Chief Executive Officer) — appointed | December 2014
Peter Barbour .

Christopher Coleman — appointed 24 October 2014
Andrew Didham

Anthony Salz

Jonathan Westcott — appointed 24 October 2014

Daniel Bouton (Non-executive)

Mark Evans (Non-executive) — resigned 19 June 2014

Eric de Rothschild (Non-executive) — resigned 19 June 2014

Auditor
Pursuant to section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, the

auditor will be deemed to be re-appointed and KPMG LLP will
therefore continue in ofﬁce

Audit information

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this
report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there is

no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor
is unaware, and each Director has taken all the steps that he

ought to have taken as a Director to make himself aware of any .

relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s
auditor is aware of that information.

By Order of the Board

H- 10, thona
Helen Horton, Secretary

New Court, St Swithin's Lane, London EC4N 8AL
22 June 2015
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Committees

To facilitate the efficient and effective administration of the Company's and the Group’s affairs, certain functions and responsibilities
have been delegated by the NMR Board to the following committees, a number of which cover the wider Paris Orléans Group
("PO™).The terms of reference and membershlp of these committees are regularly reviewed.

PO Group Committees which determine overall strategy

PO Group Management Committee

The purpose of the Group Management Committee is to formulate
strategy for the Rothschild Group's businesses, to assess the delivery of
that strategy, to ensure the proper and effective functioning of Group
governance structures, operating policies and procedures, to define the
Group's risk appetite and to be responsible for the management of risk.

- Membership

Nigel Higgins (Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer),
Paul Barry, Mark Crump, Veit de Maddalena,

Alexandre de Rothschild, Jean-Louis Laurens, Marc-Olivier
Laurent, Robert Leitdo, Richard Martin, Alain Massiera,
Olivier Pécoux (Co-Chief Executive Officer), Bruno
Pfister, Gary Powell, Jonathan Westcott.

PO Group Assets and Liabilities Committee

This committee is responsible for ensuring that the Group has prudent
funding and liquidity strategies, for the efficient management and
deployment of capital resources and for the oversight of the Group’s other
financial strategies and policies set by PO Gestion SAS, the manager of the
Group’'s uftimate parent.

Membership

Anthony Alt (Chairman), Peter Barbour, Christian Bouet,
Christopher Coleman, Paul Copsey, Alain Cornu-
Thenard, Mark Crump, Andrew Didham,

Adam Greenbury, Richard Martin, Philip Yeates.

Committees of the Company which have oversight responsibilities

Credit Committee

This committee authorises and reviews all credit exposure to new and
existing counterparties. Exposures exceeding certain limits are subject
to ratification by the PO Group Assets and Liabilities Committee.

Membership

Andrew Didham (Chairman), Michael Clancy, Christopher
Coleman, Paul Copsey, Adam Greenbury, Peter Griggs,
John King, Debra Lewis, Philip Yeates.

New Client Acceptance Committee

This committee approves, from a reputational, money laundering
and due diligence perspective, all new clients to be accepted by the
Global Financial Advisory business.

Membership

Crispin Wright (Chairman), Sarah Blomfield,
Adam Greenbury, Nicholas Ivey, Axel Stafflage,
Albrecht Stewen, Stuart Vincent, William Wells,
Jonathan Westcott, Adam Young,

PO Group Committees which have oversight responsibilities

PO Group Audit Committee

This committee supervises and reviews the Group’s internal audit
arrangements, liaises with the PO Group's external auditors and
monitors the overall system and standards of internal control.

Membership

Peter Smith (Chairman), André Lévy-Lang,
Sylvain Héfés, Carole Piwnica.

PO Group Remuneration and Nomination Committee

This committee sets remuneration policies for the Group, oversees the
annual remuneration review and approves proposals for promotion.

Membership

" Sylvain Héfés (Chairman), André Lévy-Lang, Peter Smith,

Luisa Todini.

PO Group Risk Committee

This committee formulates adequate risk identification, measurement,
monitoring and control policies and procedures that reflect the Group’s risk
profile and monitors on a consolidated basis the material risks of the Group.
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Membership
Sipko Schat (Chairman), Daniel Daeniker.



Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in
respect of the strategic report, the report of
the Directors and the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the strategic
report, the report of the Directors and the financial statements
.in accordance with applicable law and regulations. ' ’

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and
Parent Company financial statements for each financial year.
Under that law the Directors have elected to prepare both
the Group and the Parent Company financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS™) as adopted by the EU and applicable law. '

Under company law the Directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a

* true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Parent
Company and of the profit or loss of the Group and Parent .
Company for that period.

In preparing each of the Group and the Parent Company
financial statements, the Directors are required to:

®  select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently;

= make judgements and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent;

= state whether they have been prepared in accordance with
IFRS as adopted by the EU; and

®=  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group and
the Parent Company will continue in business. -

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Parent
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial position of the Parent Company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comiply with
the Companies Act 2006.They have a general responsibility for
taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard
the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and
other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and
integrity of the corporate and financial information included

on the Company's website. Legislation in the UK governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ

v I
from legislation in other jurisidictions.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members
of N M Rothschild & Sons Limited

We have audited the Group and Parent Company financial
statements (the “financial statements”) of N M Rothschild & Sons
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2015 set out on pages |4
to 81.The financial reporting framework that has been applied -
in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS") as adopted by the EU and, as
regards the Parent Company financial statements, as applied in

" accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

This report is made solely to the Company's members,

as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the Company’s members those matters
we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for
no other purpose.To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Company and the Company's members, as a body, for our audit
- work, for this.report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Directors
and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’
responsibilities on page | 1,the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit, and
express an opinion on, the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing

(UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is
provided on the Financial Reporting Council’s web-site at:
wwwi frc.orguk/auditscopeukprivate.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion:

® the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of the Group's and of the Parent Company's affairs

as at 31 March 2015 and ofthe Groups proﬂt for the year

then ended;

= the Group financial statements have been properly
~ prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU;

= the Parent Company financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by
the EU and as applied in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act 2006; and

® the financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
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Opinion on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in theStrategic report
and the Directors’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial
statements.

Matters on which we are required to report
by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters
where the Compannes Act 2006 requires us to report to you if,
in our opinion:

®  adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

= the financial statements are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns; or

®  certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by
law are not made; or

»  we have not received all the information and explanations
we require for our audit.

Pamela Mcintyre
(Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

I5 Canada Square

Canary Wharf

London

El4 5GL

22 Jure 2015
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 March 2015 |

2015 2014
Note £'000 £000
Interest and similar income 4 43320 47,765
Interest expense and similar charges 4 (20,768) (26,759)
Net interest income 22,552 21,006
Fee and commission income 5 456918 368,546
Fee and commission expense S (33.094) (18,009)
Net fee and commiission income 423,824 350,537
Net trading income 6 1,245 . 530
Other operating income 7 13,261 13,064
Total operating income 460,882 385,137
Impairment losses on loans and other credit risk provisions 11,12 (11.346) (4.854)
Other impairment losses on available-for-sale equities 12 (944) (926)
Net operating income 448,592 379,357
Operating expenses . N 8 (366,545) (313,704)
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of non-financial assets 17,18 (9.922) (15.984)
Share of profit in assodiates and joint ventures 15 4,866 4951
Profit before tax 76,991 54,620
Tax 10 (25433) (20,185) .
Profit after tax* . 51,558 34,435

! Certain prior year amounts have been restated as explained in note | (page 22).

* Of the £51,558,000 (2014: £34,435,000) profit after tax, £33,058,000 (2014: £16,650,000) is attributable to ordinary shareholders
of the parent company, £7,415,000 (2014: £7,979,000) is attributable to holders of perpetual instruments and £1 1,085,000 (2014:

£9,806,000) is attributable to other non-controlling interests.

The notes on pages 22 to 81 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 3| March 2015

2015 2014
Note £'000 £'000
Profit after tax 51,558 34,435
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement losses on defined beneﬁt.pension funds o 21 (22,248) (3.389)
Income tax thereon 10 4,438 (5.156)
, (17,810) (8.545)
- Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Change in fair value of assets classified as available-for-sale 5,886 17,066
Net change in fair value of available-for-sale finandial assets transferred to income statement 2,200 3,606
Amortisation of fair value of reclassified assets 11 838 2,181
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges 10 - 329
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (5.841) (4,356)
Income tax on items that may be redassified to profit or loss 10 (650) (5.436)
' 2,443 13,390
Other comprehensive income for the: financial year,
net of tax . (15,367) 4,845
Total comprehensive income for the financial year 036,191 39,280
Attributable to
— Ordinary sharehofders of the parent 20,228 22011
~ Holders of perpetual instruments 7415 7979
— Other non-controlling interests 8,548 9.290
36,191 39,280

The notes on pages 22 to 81 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Consolidated balance sheet
At 31 March 2015 |

2015 © 2004
Note £'000 £'000
Assets ,
Cash and balances at central banks 639,247 759,864
Loans and advances to banks I 94,165 76,884
Loans and advances to customers I 395,797 451,273
Debt and equity securities ' 12 207,450 219,710
Derivatives o .13 15227 TR
Other assets : 14 . 118,125 132,658 °
Current tax assets  ~ ’ : 2,761 2,555
Investments in associates and joint ventures L) ) 38,827 44,652
Intangible assets - 17 10,827 11,567
Property, plant and equipment ) 18 53,673 55926
Deferred tax assets ’ : : 20 63,170 73,106
Total assets : 1,639,269 1,840,417
Liabilities )
Deposits by banks ' 281,027 316,255
Customer deposits 463,825 656,418
Derivatives 13 610 1382 .
Other liabilities 19 154,438 147,375
Current tax liabilities . ) 11,059 8932
Deferred tax liabilities . 20 - 378
Accruals and deferred income 193,753 187,100
Total liabilities 1,104,712 1,317,840
Equity .
Share capital ) ' 28 57,655 57,655
Share premium account . 97,936 : 97,936
Retained earnings . 221,118 218427
Other reserves 7931 3018
Total shareholders’ equity attributable to drdinary shareholders 384,640 377,036
Non-controlling interests 27 25,582 21,206
Perpetual instruments ) . 29 124,335 124,335
Total equity : : 534,557 522,577
Total equity and liabilities ' 1,639,269 1,840,417
! Certain prior yearvamounts have been restated as explained in note | (page 22).
The accounts on pages |4 to 81 were approved by the Board of Directors and were signed on its behalf by:

Ny Mg~

Nigel Higgihg, Chief Exécutive Officer Peter Barbour, Director
22 June 2015 22 June 2015

The notes on pages 22 to 81 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 March 2015

“+

. Available- Non-

Share Share Retained Translation for-sale Hedging Perpetual controlling

capital premium earnings reserve reserve reserve instruments interests Total equity

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000  £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At | April 2014 57,655 97,936 218,427 10,650 (7,626) (6) 124,335 21,206 522,577
Acquisition of subsidiary - - - - - - - 6l 6l
Total comprehensive.
income for the period - - 15315 (3371) 8276 8 7415 8,548. 36,191
Dividends - - (13,000) - - - - (4284) (17,284)
Equity-settled share-based payments - - 376 - - - - Sl . 427 .
Interest on perpetual instruments - = - - - - (9.386) - (9,386)
—Tax thereon - - - - - - 1971 - 1971
At 3| March 2015 57,655 97,936 221,118 7,279 650 2 124,335 25,582 534,557
At | April 2013 57,655 97,936 223,150 14,463  (25,119) (259) 124,335 15,181 507,342
Total comprehensive -
income for the period - - 8,078 (3813) 17,493 253 7979 9290 39,280
Dividends - — . (13,000) - - - - (3291) (l6291)
Equity-settled share-based payments - - 199 - - - - 26 225
Interest on perpetual instruments - - - - - - (10,363) - (10363)
—Tax thereon - - - - - - 2,384 - 2,384
At 31 March 2014 57.655 97,936 218,427 10,650 (7.626) 6) 124,335 21,206 522,577

The notes on pages 22 to 81 form an integral part of these financiat statements
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Company balance sheet
At 31 March 2015

I\ =

Nige! Higgins, Chief Executs fficer
22 June 2015

The notes on pages 22 to 81 form an integral part of these financial statements
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. Peter Barbour, Director

22 june 2015

2015 2014
Note £000 £'000
Assets '
Cash and balances at central banks 639.240 759857
Loans and advances to banks ' I 7916 13,564
Loans and advances to customers I 362379 412937
" Debt and equity securities 12 206,425 218,646
Derivatives 13 15227 12,222
Other assets 14 84,642 86,544
Current tax assets . 1,308 91
Shares in subsidiary undertakings 30 40,022 40,022
Investments in associates and joint ventures 15 34,766 40,198
R Property, plant and equipment 18 39487 43,580
Deferred tax assets 20 54,345 61,905
Total assets 1,485,757 1,689,566
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 281,027 316,255
Customer deposits . Y . 477,048 663,280
Derivatives ’ 13 610 1,382
Other liabilities 19 125,738 110,163
Accruals and deferred income 150,892 148,294
Total liabilities 1,035,315 1,239,374
Equity
Share capital 28 57655 57.655
Share premium account 97936 97936
Perpetual instruments 29 124,335" 124335
Retained earnings 169,864 177926
Other reserves 652 (7.660)
Total equity 450,442 450,192
Total equity and liabilities 1,485,757 1,689,566
The accounts on pages 14 to 81 were approved by the Board of Directors and were sig half/by:



Company statement of ‘changes’in equity

For the year ended 31 March 2015

Available-
Share Retained for-sale Hedging  Perpetual Total
Share capital premium earnings reserve reserve instruments equity
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At | April 2014 57,655 97,936 177,926 (7,654) (6) 124,335 450,192
Profit for the financial year - - 22,302 - - 7415 29717
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Remeasurement losses on defined benefit
pension funds - - Q211 - - - [eYRARMN
income tax thereon - - 1,422 - - - 4,422
- - (17.689) - - - (17,689)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently '
to profit or loss:
Change in fair value of assets dassified as :
available-for-sale - - - 5,886 - - 5,886
Net change in fair value of available-for-sale )
financial assets transferred to income statement - - - 2,228 - - 2,228
Amortisation of fair value of reclassified
financial assets - - - 838 - - 838
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash
flow hedges ‘ - - - - 10 - 10
Income tax on items that may be reclassified to
profit or loss - - - (648) ) - (650)
] - - - 8,304 8 - 8312
Other comprehensive income for the :
financial year net of income tax - - (17,689) 8,304 8 - (9,377)
Total comprehensive income for the
financial year - - 4613 8,304 8 7,415 20,340
Other items
Dividends paid ' - - (13.000) - - - (13.000)
Equity-settled share-based payments * - - 325 - - o= 325
Interest on perpetual instruments - - - - - (9.386) (9.386)
—Tax thereon - - - - - 1971 1971
At 31| March 2015 57,655 97,936 169,864 650 124,335 450,442

The notes on pages 22 to 81 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Company statement of changes in eQuity'(contihued)

Available- ' .
Share Share Retained for-sale . Hedging  Perpetual Total
capital premium earnings reserve reserve instruments equity
) ) £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000
At | April 2013 ' 57,655 97936 194,209 V (26,112) (259) 124,335 447,764
Profit for the financial year - - 5,137 - - 7979 13,116
Other comprehensive income
Items that'will not be reclassified to profit or loss: )
" Remeasurement losses on defined benefit pension funds - - (3.451) - - - (3.451)
Income tax thereon ' - - (5.142) - - - (5.142)
- - (8,593) - - - (8.593)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:
Change in fair value of assets classified as
available-for-sale - - - 17,309 - - 17,309
Net change in fair value of available-for-sale ' ‘
financial assets transferred to income statement - - - 4,532 - - 4,532
. Amortisation of fair value of reclassified .
financial assets - - - 2,181 - - 2,181
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash
flow hedges .- - - - 329 - - 329
Income tax on items that may be reclassified to L .
profit or loss - - - (5.564) - (76) - (5,640)
’ - - - 18,458 253 - 18711
Other comprehensive income for the .
financial year net of income tax - - (8,593) 18,458 253 - 10,118
Total comprehensive income for the ‘ .
financial year - - (3,456) 18,458 253 - . 7,979 23,234
Other items )
Dividends paid - - (13,000) - - - (13,000)
Equity-settled share-based payments - - 173 - - .- 173
Interest on perpetual instruments : - - - (- - (10363) (10363)
~Tax thereon . - - - - - 2,384 2,384
At 31 March 2014 57,655 97,936 177,926 (7,654) (6) 124,335 450,192

The no't;s on pages 22 to 81 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Cash flow statements
For the year ended 3| March 2015

2014

- 2015 2015 2014
Group Company Group Company
) Note £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before income tax for the financial year 76,991 40,007 54,620 21,997
Adjustments to reconcile net profit to cash flow from operating activities
Non-cash items included in net profit and other adjustments
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of goodwill and fixed assets 9922 4,144 15,984 5303
Dividends from subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures - (15.954) - (16,360)
Share of operating profit of associates (4.866) - (4951) -
Impairment of financial assets (net of recovery) 12,290 13,000 5,780 17,778
Loss on disposal of loans and available-for-sale assets 2,632 2,632 1,330 2,172
Equity-settled share-based payments 427 325 225 173
(Profit)/loss on disposal of fixed assets (214) 6 (65) -
20,191 4,153 18,303 9,066
Net decrease/(increase) in operating assets ’
Net due to/from banks (excluding cash equivalents) (34,757)- (35.015) 5.052 3,670
Derivatives (3.005) (3,005) 10,294 10,294
Available-for-sale financial assets 16,357 16318 46,505 46,741
Loans and advances to customers 45,603 39,781 147,432 145314
Accrued income, prépaid expenses and other assets 14,369 1902 23,888 23,397
! 38,567 19,981 233,171 229,416
Net (decrease)/increase in operating liabilities
Customer deposits (192.593) (186,232) (277919) (277.750)
Derivatives (762) (762) (1,830) (1.830)
Accrued expenses and other liabifities (8.765) (3.938) (60,218) (47.852)
Income taxes (paid)/received - (7.964) 1,796 (7.347) (1,675)
(210,084)  (189,136) (347,314  (329,107)
Net cash flow (used in)/from operating activities (74,335) (124,995) (41,220) (68,628)
Cash flow (used in)/from investing activities '
Acquisition/increase in stake of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures (1,338) - (980) (530)
Dividends received from subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures 4,472 15954 4722 16,360
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures 5432 5432 1,711 1711
Purchase of fixed assets (6,733) (57) (5.681) (95)
Disposal of fixed assets 1,180 - 788 -
Net cash-flow (used in)/from investing activities 3,013 21,329 560 17,446
Cash flow used in financing activities :
Dividends paid (13.000) (13.000) (13,000) (13,000)
Interest paid on perpetual instruments (9.386) " (9.386) (10363) (10,363)
Distributions to non-controlling interests (4.284) - (3.291) -
Net cash flow used in financing activities (26,670) (22,386) (26,654) (23,363)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (97,992) (126,052) (67,314) (74,545)
Cash and cash equivalents at | April 833,154 773,208 902,884 847,753
Effect of exchange rate movements on cash and cash equivalents (4.873) - (2416) -
Cash and cash equivalents at 3| March 25 730,289 647,156 833,154 773,208

! Certain prior year amounts have been restated as explained in note | (page 22).

2 Group: cash paid and received for interest during 2015 was £24,788,000 (2014: £41,764,000) and £49,853,000 (20 14: £50,506,000) respectively. Company: cash paid and

received for interest during 2015 was £24,870,000 (2014: £41,038,000 ) and £28,188,000 (2014: £34,252,000) respectively.

The notes on pages 22 to 81 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the financial statements

(forming part of the financial statements)

l.  Summary of significant accounting policies

N M Rothschild & Sons Limited (“the Company”) is a company incorporated in the United Kingdom.The Group financial
statements consolidate those of the Company and its subsidiaries and jointly-controlled entities and equity account for the Group’s
interests in associates (together referred to as “the Group”).The Parent Company financial statements present information about
the Company as a separate entity and not about its group. The accounting policies of the Group set out in this note also apply to
the Parent Company financial statements unless otherwise stated. ;

Developments in reporting standards and interpretations

Standards affecting the financial statements

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements replaces IAS 27 Consolidated and Financial Statements and SIC-12 Consolidation — Special
Purpose Entities. The new standard introduces a single model of assessing control. Control exists where an investor has the power to
direct the activities of another entity i order to influence the returns to the investor. The application of IFRS 10 has not had a material
impact on these financial statements.

IFRS |1 Joint Arrangements replaces IAS 31| Interests in Joint Ventures. The new standard requires all joint ventures to be equity
accounted whereas, previously, the Group accounted for joint ventures by proportional consolidation. The change in accounting policy
is to be applied retrospectively and, as a result, certain income statement and balance sheet categories have been restated.There is,
however, no change in the profit of the Group or the amounts attributable to the various categories of shareholder so the overall
impact is not significant. The restatement affects comparative disclosures in the consolidated income statement, balance sheet and
cashflow statement as well as notes 2,3,4,5,8,9, 14,15, 19 and 21. ’

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities sets out new disclosure requirements in respect of interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements and associates as well as introducing new requirements for unconsolidated structured entities. The new disclosure
requirements are provided in notes |5 and 6.

Amendments to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement: Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting allows the continuation of hedge accounting on the novation of a hedging derivative, provided certain criteria are met.The
amendment has not had a material impact on these consolidated financial statements.

IFRIC 21 Levies provides guidance on when to recognise a liability for a levy imposed by a government. IFRIC 21 identifies the obligating
event for the recognition of a liability. If that obligating event occurs over a period of time, the levy is recognised proportionately. If

it is triggered by a minimum threshold, the liability is recognised when that threshold is reached. This interpretation is to be applied
retrospectively but does not have any material impact on these consolidated financial statements.

New Standards and interpretations

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods ending after

31 March 2015 and therefore have not been applied in preparing these consolidated financial statements.The Group is currently
reviewing these new standards to determine their effects on the Group’s financial reporting. Those that may have a significant
effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Group are:

Accounting standards first effective in the Group's 2018 financial statements

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which provides a principles-based framework for determining whether, how .
much and when revenue is recognised and replaces existing revenue standards. Whilst the full implications of the new standard have
still to be assessed, it is currently not expected to have a material impact on future revenue recognition.

Page 22 | N M Rothschild & Sons Limited | Registered Number 925279



Notes to the financial sta‘tements

(forming part of the financial statements)

|. - Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Accounting standards first effective in the Group'’s 2019 consolidated financial statements or later

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, which replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and includes rewsed
guidance in respect of the classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities and introduces additional requirements for
liabilities and hedge accounting as well as a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial assets. The most
significant impact for the Group is to replace the current categorisation of financial assets. (held-to-maturity, fair value through profit
and loss, available-for-sale and loans and receivables) such that financial assets would only be measured at amortised cost or fair
value depending on the assets’ contractual terms. -

Basis of preparation

Both the Parent Company and the Group financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards ('IFRS”) and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC") interpretations endorsed
by the European Union (“EU") and with those requirements of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under
~ IFRS.The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, except that available-for-sale investments, financial
assets held for trading or designated as fair value through profit and loss and all derivative contracts are stated at their fair value.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available in section 408 of the Compames Act 2006 not to present its
individual income statement and related notes.

The principal accounting policies set out below have been consistently applied in the presentation of the Group financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The financial statements of the Group are made up to 31 March 20I5 and consolidate the fi nanoal statements of the Company
and its subsidiary undertakings. :

Subsidiary undertakings

Subsidiary undertakings are all entities which are controlled by the Group.The Group ‘controls’ an entity if it is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiary undertakings are fully consolidated from the date on Wthh the Group acquires control, and cease to be consolidated from
the date that control ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting for the acquisition of subsidiary undertakings. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the fair value of the assets given as consideration, shares issued or liabilities undertaken at the date of acquisition.The
excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the net identifiable. assets of the subsidiary undertaking acquired is recorded
as goodwill. All inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised surpluses and deficits on transactions between group companies
are eliminated on consolidation.The accountlng policies used by subsidiary undertakings are consns‘tent with the policies adopted by
the Group. :

In the Parent Company financial statements, investments in subsidiary undertakings are carried at cost less any impairment losses.

Associates and joint arrangements

"An associated undertaking is an entity in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over the operating and financial
management policy decisions. This is generally demonstrated by the Group holdlng in excess of 20 per cent, but no more than 50
per cent, of the voting rights.

Joint arrangements are where two or more parties, through a contractual arrangement, have joint control over the assets and
liabilities of an arrangement. Depending on what those rights and obligations are, the joint arrangement will either be a joint
operation (where the parties subject to the arrangement have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to the
arrangement) or a joint venture (where the parties subject to the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the arrangement).
During the year, the Group only had interests in joint ventures.

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are initially recorded at cost. Subsequently they are increased or decreased
by the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profit or loss, or by other movements reflected directly in the equity of the investment.
When the Group's share of losses in an associate or joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the investment, the Group

does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the undertakmg Positive
goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate or joint venture is included in the cost of the investment (net of any accumulated
impairment loss). '

In the Parent Company financial statements, investments in associates and-joint ventures are carried at cost less any impairment losses.
S
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Notes to the financial statements

(formmg part of the financial statements)

. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

"Going concern

The Group's business activities, together with the principal risks and uncertainties, are set out in the Strategic report. In addition,
note 2 to the financial statements sets out the strategy and processes for managing the Group's capital and financial risks and
provides details of its exposures to credit, market and liquidity risk. The Group has considerable financial resources and continues
to generate new profitable business. It is well placed to manage its business risk for the foreseeable future despite an uncertain
economic outlook.

There is, therefore, a strong expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and, accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Foreign exchange

The consolidated financial statements are presented in sterling, rounded to the nearest thousand (£'000"), unless otherwise stated.
Sterling is the Company's functional currency and the Group's reporting currency. ltems included in the financial statements of

each of the Group’s entities are measured using their functional currency. The functional currency is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates. .

Income statements and cashflows of foreign operations are translated into the Group's reporting currency at average exchange
rates for the period where these rates approximate to the foreign exchange rates ruling at the date of the transactions and their
balance sheets are translated at the exchange rate at the end of the period. Exchange differences arising from the translation of the
net investment in foreign subsidiary and associated undertakings and joint ventures are taken to shareholders’ equity. On disposal of
a foreign operation, these translation differences are recognised in the income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. Gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions, and from the translation at period end exchange rates of monetary items that
are denominated in foreign currencies, are recognised in the income statement, except when deferred in equity.as qualifying cash
flow hedges. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that
‘are stated at fair value are translated at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates when the fair value was determined.

Translation differences on equities classified as at fair value through profit or loss are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss
in the income statement. Translation differences on equities classified as available-for-sale are included in the available-for-sale reserve
in equity. ’ :

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arasmg on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and are translated at the closing rate. .

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives

Derivatives are entered into for trading and risk management purposes. Derivatives used for risk management are accounted for as
hedges where they qualify as such under IAS 39.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently measured at fair value with changes in falr value recognised in
the income statement except that, where derivatives qualify for hedge accounting, recognition of any gain or loss depends on the
nature of the item being hedged and the hedge relationship.
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Notes to the financial statements - .

’(forming part of the financial statements)

l. Summaly of significant accounting policies (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

Hedge accounting

The Group may apply either fair value or cash flow hedge accounting when transactions meet the criteria for hedge accounting
treatment set out in IAS 39.At the inception of the hedge, the Group assesses whether the hedging derivatives meet the
effectiveness criteria of IAS 39 in offsetting changes in the fair value or cashflows of the hedged items.The Group then documents
the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item. tt also records its risk management objectives, its strategy for
undertaking the hedge transaction and the methods used to assess the effectiveness of the hedging relationship.

After inception, effectiveness is tested on an on-going basis. Hedge accounting is discontinued when it is determined that a
derivative has ceased to be highly effective, when the derivative or the hedged item is derecognised, or when the forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur.

Fair value hedge accounting

Changes in value of fair value hedge derivatives are recorded in the income statement, together with fair value changes to the
underlying hedged item in respect of the risk being hedged.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the difference between the carrying value of the hedged item on
termination of the hedging relationship and the value at which it would have been carried had the hedge never existed is amortised
to the income statement over the residu‘al period to maturity based on a recalculated effective interest rate.

Cash flow hedge accounting

Changes in the fair value of the effective portion of derivatives designated as cash flow hedges are recognised in equity. The gain or
loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised in the income statement. Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the
income statement when the item being hedged impacts profit or loss. :

When hedge accounting is discontinued, any cumulative gain or loss in equity remains in equity and is only recognised in the income
statement when the hedged item is recognised in the income statement. When the forecast transaction is no longer expected to
occur, the cumulative balance in equity is immediately transferred to the income statement.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense represents interest arising out of banking activities, including tending and deposit-taking, interest on related
hedging transactions and interest on debt securities. Net interest arising from interest rate instruments held for trading is included in
trading income. Interest income and expense is recognised in the income statement using the effective interest rate method.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cashflows of a financial instrument to its net
carrying amount. lt is used to calculate the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and to allocate the interest over
the relevant period (usually the expected life of the instrument). When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group considers
all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes any premiums or discounts, as well as all fees and transaction costs that are an integral part of the financial asset.

Fee and commission income

The Group earns fee and commission income from services provided to clients. Fee income from advisory and other services can
be divided into two broad categories: fees earned from services that are provided over a period of time, which are recognised over
the period in which the service is provided; and fees that are earned on completion of a significant act or on the occurrence of an
event, such as the completion of a transaction, which are recognised when the act is completed or the event occurs.

Fees and commissions that are an integral part of a loan, and loan commitment fees for loans that are likely to be drawn down, are
deferred (together with related direct costs) and recognised over the life of the loan as an adjustment to the effective interest rate.
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Notes to the financial statements

(forming part of the financial statements)

. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities

The Group initially recognises loans and advances and deposits on the date on which they start. All other financial assets and
liabilities are recognised on trade date.

On initial recognition, IAS 39 requires that financial assets be classified into the following categories: at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and advances, held-to-maturity investments, or available-for-sale. The Group does not hold any assets that are classified as
held-to-maturity investments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category comprises financial assets held for trading (i.e. primarily acquired for the purpose of selling in the short term), assets
designated as fair value through profit and loss, and derivatives that are not designated as cashflow hedges. These financial assets
are initially recognised at fair value, with transaction costs recorded immediately in the income statement, and are subsequently
measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value or on derecognition are recognised in the income
statement as net trading income. Interest and dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised
in trading income.

Loans and advances

“Loans and advances are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Loans which are intended to be sold in the short term are classified as held for trading and are recorded at fair value through profit
or loss. ' : ’

Loans and advances are initially recorded at fair value, including any directly attributable transaction costs, and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses arising on derecognition of loans and
receivables are recognised in other operating income. :

Financial assets that have been reclassified as loans and advances out of the available-for-sale category are reclassified at fair value
on the date of reclassification and are subsequently measured at amortised cost: using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss recognised in equity prior to reclassification is amortised to the income statement over the remaining maturity of the
financial asset.

Available-for-sale investments

. Available-for-sale investments comprise non-derivative financial assets that are either designated as available-for-sale on initial
recognition or are not classified into the categories described above. Available-for-sale investments are initially recognised at fair
* value, including direct and incremental transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at fair value.

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in equity until the financial
asset is sold, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is transferred to the income statement. interest (determined using the
effective interest rate method), impairment losses and translation differences on monetary items are recognised in the income
statement as they arise. Translation differences on available-for-sale éqpities are included in the available-for-sale reserve in equity.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the income statement when the Group’s right to receive
payment is established. :

Financial liabilities o

Financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, except for derivatives that are generally
classified as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition (unless designated as cash flow hedges).

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss

. it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, and the initial fair value is amortised over the life of the guarantee.The

‘ guarantee liability is subsequently carried at the higher of the amortised amount and the expected present value of any expected
payment (when a payment under the guarantee has become probable). : '

Where one Group company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies within
the Group, that company considers these to be insurance arrangements and accounts for them as such. In this respect, the Group
company treats the guarantee contract as a contingent liability until such time as it becomes probable that it will be required to
make a payment under the guarantee, whereupon the expected amount payable will be recognised.
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‘Notes to the financial st'atéme‘nts

(forming part of the financial statements)

| Summary of Significarit accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

N v

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when: _

i.  the contractual rights to cashflows arising from the financial asset have expired; or

i. it transfers the financial asset including substantially all of the risks and rewards of the ownership of the asset; or

iit. it transfers the financial asset, neither retaining nor transferring substantlally all the risks and rewards of the asset, but no longer
retains controt of the asset. .

Determination of fair value

The fair value of quoted investments in active markets is based on current bid prices. For other financial assets and liabilities, the
Group establishes fair value by using appropriate valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm's length transactions,
discounted cashflow analysis, option pricing models and.other valuation methods commonly used by, market participants. For
certain investments, the valuation may be derived from quotations received from various sources.Where the market is illiquid, the
quotations may not be supported by prices from actual market transactions. The fair value of short term debtors and creditors is
materially the same as invoice value. :

Securitisation transactions
4
The Group may epter into funding arrangements with'lenders in order to finance specific financial assets.

In general, the assets from these transactions are held on the Group's balance sheet on origination. However, to the extent that
substantially all the risks and returns associated with the assets have been transferred to a third party, the assets are derecognised in
whole or in part.

Interests in securitised financial assets may be taken in the form of senior or subordinated tranches of debt securities, or other
residual interests. Such interests-are primarily recorded as available-for-sale assets.
Impairment of financial assets

Assets are ‘Assessed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired.

Impairment losses are incurred if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events occurring after initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event has ‘an impact on the estimated future cashflows of the financial asset
or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of assets is impaired
includes observable data about the following loss events:

i, s1gr)|ﬂcant financial difficulty of the issuer;
ii. abreach of contract, such as a defaurt or delinquency in interest or principal repayment;

jil.  granting to the borrower a concession, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, that the
lender would not otherwise consider; - :

iv. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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(forming part of the financial statements)

[.  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Impairment of loans and advances

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually
significant and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. Impairment losses are calculated-on a
collective basis in respect of losses that have been incurred but not yet identified on loans that are subject to individual assessment
for impairment and for homogeneous groups of loans that are not considered individually significant. If no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, it is included in a collective assessment for impairment with other assets
with similar risk characteristics.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of expected future cashflows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced, the loss being recognised in the income statement.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cashflows of a financial asset reflects the cashflows that may result
from scheduled interest payments, principal repayments, or other payments due, including liquidation of collateral where available.
In estimating these cashflows, management makes judgements about a counterparty’s financial situation and the fair value of any
underlying collateral or guarantees in the Group's favour. Each impaired asset is assessed on its merits and the workout strategy
and estimate of cashflows considered recoverable are reviewed by the Credit Committee on a quarterly basis. The methodology
and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and the timing of future cashflows are reviewed regularly to reduce any
differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

Collectively assessed credit risk allowances cover credit losses inherent in portfolios of financial assets with similar economic
characteristics where there is objective evidence to, suggest that they contain impaired assets but the individual impaired items
cannot yet be identified. For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of
similar credit risk characteristics. Future cashflows are estimated on the basis of historical loss experience. These estimates are
subject to regular review and adjusted to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the period on which the
historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do not exist currently.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income
is recognised using the original effective interest rate which was used to discount the future cashflows for the purpose of measuring

the impairment loss.
¢

If,in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related to an objective event
occurring after the impairment was recognised (for example, being awarded a new contract that materially enhances future
cashflows), the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance for loan impairment. The amount of the
reversal is recognised in the income statement. :

When a loan is deemed uncollectable, it is written off against the related allowance for loan impairment. Recoveries received in
respect of loans previously written off are recorded as a decrease in the impairment losses on loans and advances and are recorded
in the income statement in the year in which the recovery was made. Loans subject to individual impairment assessment whose
terms have been renegotiated and which would have been past due or impaired had they not been renegotiated, are reviewed to
determine whether they are impaired or past due. :

Impairment of available-for-sale assets

Available-for-sale assets are assessed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired, which requires judgement by management.

For equity shares classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered evidence of impairment. If any such evidence exists, the cumulative loss is removed from equity and recognised in the
income statement. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value on an equity share classified as available-for-sale increases, the impairment
loss is not reversed through the income statement, but remains recorded in equity. However; any further decline in the fair value will
be recognised as a further impairment charge.

Impairment of available-for-sale debt securities is based on the same criteria as for all other financial assets. If in a subsequent period the
fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in the income statement, the impairment loss is reversed through the income statement.

The loss recognised in the income statement is the difference between the acquisition cost and current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the income statement.

Page 28 | N M Rothschild & Sons Limited | Registered Number 925279



Notes to the financial statements

(forming part of the financial statements)

l.  Summary of signiﬁcaht accounting policies (continued)

Debt/equity classification

Under IFRS the critical feature in differentiating a debt instrument from an equity instrument is the existence of a contractual
obligation of the Group to deliver cash (or another financial asset) to another entity. Where there is no such contractual obligation,
the Group will classify the financial instrument as equity, otherwise it will be classified as a liability and carried at amortised cost:
The terms of the perpetual debt instruments issued by the Group permit interest payments to be waived unless the Company has
paid a dividend in the previous six months and are therefore considered to be equity. :

Goodwill

Goodwill in a subsidiary or an associated undertaking represents the excess, at the date of acquisition, of an acquisition’s cost over
the fair value of the Group's share of net identifiable assets acquired. Identifiable intangible assets are those which can be sold
separately or which arise from legal rights regardless of whether those rights are separate.

When the Group increases its stake in an entlty which it already controls, any difference between the price paid for the addrtlonal
stake and the increase in the net assets acquired by the Group is recognised directly in equity.

Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment, or more frequently
when circumstances indicate that its carrrying amount is too high. )

Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise acquired intellectual property rights and future servicing rights, which are carried at cost less accumulated

- amortisation and impairment losses. The intellectual property rights are amortised on the basis of an estimated useful fife of 10
years.The future servicing rights are amortised over the servicing period as the fees from servicing are recognised. Intangible assets
are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence of impairment. If such evidence exists, an
impairment test is performed to estimate the recoverable amount of the assets and, if necessary, an impairment charge is recognised
in the income statement.

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment is stated at cost. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
asset including, in respect of leasehold improvements, costs incurred in preparing the property for occupation.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of assets
to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows: :

~Computer equipment 2-10 years
Cars 3-5 years ‘

' Fixtures and fittings 3-10 years
Leasehold improvements 4-24 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. '

Gains and losses on disposals are determmed by comparing proceeds with carrying amounts. These gains and losses are recognised
in the income statement.

.
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. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of pro'perty, plant and equipment

At each balance sheet date, or more frequently where events or changes in circumstances dictate, property, plant and equipment is
assessed for indications of impairment. If such indications are present, those assets are subject to an impairment review. If impaired,
the carrying values of assets are written down by the amount of any impairment and the loss is recognised in the income statement
in the period in which it occurs. A previously recognised impairment loss relating to a fixed asset may be reversed when a change

in circumstances leads to a change in the estimates used to determine the fixed asset’s recoverable amount. The carrying amount of
the fixed asset is only increased up to the amount that it would have been had the original impairment not been recognised.

Finance and operating leases

A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset. An operating
lease is a lease other than a finance lease.

Where the Group is the lessor

Finance leases )

When assets are held subject to a finance lease, the present value of the lease payments is recognised as a receivable. The difference
between the gross receivable and the present value of the receivable is recognised as unearned finance income. Lease income is
recognised in interest income over the term of the lease using the net investment method (before tax), which reflects a constant
periodic rate of return.

Operating leases

Assets acquired for use by customers under operating lease agreements including initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an
operating lease, are capitalised and inciuded in the relevant category of fixed assets. Depreciation is charged on a straight-line basis
to write the value of the asset down to the expected residual value over a period consistent with other assets of a similar type.

Operating lease income and the initial direct costs are recognised in other operating income ona straight-line basis over the period
of the lease.

Where the Group is the lessee
The total payments made ander operating leases are charged to the income statement as operating expenses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with original maturities of three months or less, including cash and non-restricted
balances with central banks, certificates of deposit and loans and advances to banks.

Pen5|ons _

The Groups post-retirement beneﬁt arrangements are described in note 2[.The Group operates a number of pension and other
post-retirement benefit schemes, both funded and unfunded, of the defined benefit and defined contribution types. For defined
contribution schemes, the contribution payable in respect of the accounting period is recognised in the income statement.

Remeasurement gains and losses in the defined benefit schemes are recognised outside the income statement and presented in
the statement of comprehensive income. The amount recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit schemes is the
difference, if any, between the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date and the fair value of the
plan’s assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method.
The principal assumptions are set out in note 21.The present value of the obligation is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits
will be paid and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension liabilities.

Long term employee benefits

The Group operates long term profit share schemes for the benefit of employees. The costs of such schemes are recognised in the
income statement over the period in which the services are rendered that give rise to the obligation. Where the payment of profit
share is deferred until the end of a specified- vestlng period, the deferred amount is recognised in the income statement over the
period up to the date of vesting,

~The Group has entered into cash-settled share-based payment transactions as part of the long term profit share schemes.The fair
value of such awards is independently measured at the date the awards are made and remeasured at each reporting date. Such
- awards are recognised in the i income statement over the vesting period.

Page 30 | N M Rothschild & Sons Limited | Registered Number 925279



‘Notes to the financial statements

(forming part of the financial statements)

[. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Long term employee benefits (continued) ~

Share options are treated as equity-settled share-based payments.They are valued at the date they are granted to employees and
that value is recognised in staff costs over the vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment to shareholders’ equity-The fair
value is calculated on the basis of the overall plan value at the date of grant. In the absence of any market for stock options, models
are used to value the share-based payments. The only assumptions revised after the initial measurement, and hence resulting in a
revaluation .of the expense, are those relating to the probability that employees will leave the Group.

Taxation

Tax payable on profits and deferred tax are recognised in the income statement except to the extent that they relate to items that
are recognised in equity, in which case the tax is also recognised in equity.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and laws that are expected to apply
when a deferred tax asset is realised, or when a deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets, including the tax effects of income tax losses available for carry forward, are only recognised where it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is not
provided on temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiary undertakings and associated undertakings, unless the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by a third party or it is probable that the difference will reverse in
the foreseeable future. Where permitted deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are only offset against each other within the
same entity or within the same tax group.

Dividends

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are declared by the Company’s Board of Directors.

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised only when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events. In addition,
it must be probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and it must also be possible to
make a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation.

Contingent fiabilities are possible obligations arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed by one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the Group's control, or present obligations that are not recognised either because it is not probable.
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be reliably estimated.
Contingent liabilities are disclosed unless the possibility of a transfer of economic benefits is remote.

Accounting ]udgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. ft also
requires management to exercise judgement in applying the accounting policies.

Valuation of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants. For financial instruments carried at fair value, market prices or rates are used to determine fair value where an active
market exists (such as a recognised exchange), as it is the best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument. Market prices

are not, however, available for certain financial assets and liabilities held or issued by the Group.Where no active market price or
rate is available, fair values are estimated using present value or other valuatuon techniques, using inputs based on market conditions
existing at the balance sheet date. : :

A description of the valuation techniques used, analysis of assets and liabilities carried at fair value by valuation hierarchy, and a
sensitivity analysis of valuations not primarily based on observable market data, is provided in note 3 to the financial statements.
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l. Summaly of SIgnlflcant accountlng pohcnes (continued)

Accounting judgements and estimates (contmued)

Impairment of financial assets

Assets are assessed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired. If there is such objective evidence, and this has a negative effect on the estimated future cashflows from the asset, then -
an impairment loss is incurred. Management determines the size of the impairment allowance required using a range of factors such as the
realisable value of any collateral, the likely recovery on liquidation or bankruptcy, the viability of the customer’s business mode! and the|r
capacity to trade successfully out of financial difficutties.and generate sufficient cash flow to service debt obligations.

Portfolios of financial assets with similar economic characteristics where there is objective evidence to suggest that they contain
impaired assets, but the individually impaired items cannot yet be identified, are collectively assessed for impairment. The collectively
assessed impairment allowance is calculated on the basis of future cashflows that are estimated based on historical loss experience.

The accuracy of the allowances made depends on how accurately the Group estimates future cashflows for specific counterparties,
in particular the fair value of any collateral, and the model assumptions and parameters used in determining provisions. While this
necessarily involves judgement, the Group believes that its allowances and provisions are reasonable and supportable.

Pensions

The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method and the
principal assumptions used are set out in note 21.The assumptions that have the greatest impact on the measurement of the
pension fund liability, along with their sensitivities, are also set out in note 21.

Deferred tax

. Deferred tax assets, including those in relation to tax losses carried forward, are only recognised where it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. As part of the assessment of recoverability
‘of deferred tax as at the balance sheet date, and using medium-term profit forecasts, the Group has considered the period over
which sufficient taxable profits would arise to utilise the deferred tax assets. During the year, the UK government announced
restrictions on the ability of banks to utilise historic tax losses. This affects the period over which the deferred tax assets will be
utilised and, accordingly, the Group has decided to derecognise £6.5 million of deferred tax assets.The Group considers that there
will be sufficient profits to utilise deferred tax assets that remain recognised on the balance sheet within a reasonable time frame.

Goadwill

Goodwill is assessed at each balance sheet date to determine whether it is impaired. The. assessment includes management
assumptions on future income flows and judgements on appropriate discount rates. Management performs sensitivity analysis of -
these assumptions as part of this assessment. Further details of management's goodwill assessment is contained in note 17.
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2. Financial risk management

2.1  Strategy in using financial instruments

The use of financial instruments is fundamental to the Group's banking and treasury activities. The Group provides a range of
lending products to its clients and funds these activities by means of deposit-taking and other borrowings and uses derivatives -
principally to manage. its exposure to interest rate and currency risk. Further information on derivative contracts and the Group's
hedging strategies is set out in note |3.The key risks arising from the Group's activities involving financial instruments are as follows:
& Credit risk — the risk of loss arising from client or counterparty default. X

®  Market risk — exposure to changes in market variables such as interest rates, currency exchange rates, equity and debt prices.

®  |iquidity and fundxng risk — the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meetmg obligations assoaated W|th financial
liabilities that are settled by dellvermg cash or another financial asset.

2.2 Credit risk

Credit risk arises from all exposures to clients and counterparties relating to the Group's lending, trading and investment activities.
Limits on credit risk are set by the PO Group Management Commrrtee and by the NMR Credit Committee. The NMR Credit
Committee. reviews concentrations and makes recommendations on credit decisions to the PO Group Assets and Liabilities
Committee. Credit risk limits are set, where approprnate in respect of exposures to individual clients or counterpartnes to industry
sectors and to countries.

Exposure to credit risk is managed by detailed analysis of client and counterparty creditworthiness prior to entering into an
exposure, and by continued monitoring thereafter. A significant proportion of the Group’s lending exposures is secured on property
or other assets; the Group monitors the value of any collateral obtained. The Group also uses netting agreements to restrict credit
exposure to counterparties. For internal monitoring purposes, credit exposure on loans and debt securities is measured as the
principal amount outstanding plus ‘accrued interest. Credit exposure on derivatives is measured as the current replacement value
plus an allowance for the potential change in replacement value. :

The NMR Credit Committee reviews credit exposures on loans.and debt securltles on a quarterly basis and for this purpose they
are classified as follows:

Caitegory I

Exposures where the payment of interest or principal is not in doubt and which are not designated categories 2 to 5.

Category 2

Exposures where the payment of interest or principal is not in doubt, but which require closer observation than usual due to
some deterioration in the-position of the client, for example: poor trading results; difficult conditions in the client’s market sector;
competitive or regulatory threats; or the potential impact from currency or other factors.

Category 3
Exposures where there has been further deterioration in the posmon of the client. Although the exposure is not con51dered to be
impaired, the relationship requires close monitoring by the front office team.

Past due but not impaired

. Exposures that have failed to make a scheduled interest or principal repayment although full recovery is expected.

Category 4 '

- Exposures that are considered to be nmpalred and which carry a provision against part of the loan. Some recovery is expected to
be made.

Category 5 .

Exposures that are considered to be impaired and which carry a full provision. No significant recovery of value is expected.
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2. Financial risk management (continued)
2.2 Credit risk (continued)

a. Credit risk exposure

The tables below disclose the maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date for financial assets with significant exposure
to credit risk, without taking account of collateral held or other credit risk mitigation. Accounts receivable are treated as past due

when more than 90 days has elapsed since the invoice was issued.

: Past due
Category Category Category but not  Categories Impairment Total
: | 2 3 impaired 4and 5 allowance (net)
Group £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
At 3| March 2015 ) ‘
Cash and balances at central banks 639,247 - - - - - 639247
Derivatives 15,227 - - - - - 15,227
Loans and advances to banks 94,165 - - - - - 94,165
Loans and advances to customers 246,405 14,404 81,593 7.124 118,268 (71.997) 395797
Debt securities + 103,102 ' - 3,563 - 6315 (3691) . 109,289
Commitments and guarantees 11,235 1370 I - - - 12,616
Other financial assets 71,601 - - 12,625 2,855 (2.855) 84,226
Total 1,180,982 15,774 85,167 19,749 127,438 (78,543) 1,350,567
At 31 March 2014
Cash and balances at central banks 759.864 - - - - - 759864
Derivatives 12,222 - - - - - 12,222
Loans and advances to banks 76,884 - - - - - 76,884
Loans and advances to customers 243,257 49511 98,670 4,698 117,044 (61,907) 451273
Debt securities 101,799 4920 3416 . - 19,710 (8555) 121,290
Commitments and guarantees 4379 1717 424 - - - 6,520
Other financial assets 116,485 - - 6944 4,771 (4570) 123,630
Total o 1,314,890 56,148 102,510 11,642 141,525 (75,032) 1,551,683
The table below analyses amounts past due but not impaired:
* Past due by * Past due by .

) < 6 months > 6 months Total
Group : £000 £000 £000
At 3| March 2015
Loans and advances to customers 5,553 1571 7,424
Other financial assets ' 8975 3,650 12,625
Total ) i 14,528 5,221 19,749
At 3| March 2014 .
Loans and advances to customers 3,113 | .585 4,698
Other financial assets ' 4,365 2,579 6944
Total 7,478 4,164 11,642
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2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.2 Credit risk (continued)

Past due .
Category Category Category but not  Categories Impairment Total
| -2 3 impaired 4and5 allowance (net)
Company £'000 £'000 £000 - £000 £000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2015
Cash and balances at central banks 639,240 - - - - - 639,240
Derivatives ’ 15227 - - - - - 15,227
Loans and advances to banks 7916 - - - - - 7916
Loans and advances to customers 222,695 14,404 83,623 1,349 110,628 (70,320) 362.37§
Debt securities 103,102 - 3,563 - 6315 (3.691) 109,289
Commitments and guarantees 142,575 1370 [N - - I 143,956
Other financial assets 67417 - = 5913 1,120 (1,120) 73330
Total 1,198,172 15,774 87,197 7,262 118,063 (75,131) 1,351,337
At 31 March 2014
Cash and balances at central banks 759,857 - - - - - 759,857
Derivatives 12,222 - - - - - 12,222
Loans and advances to banks 1 3,564 - B - - - 13,564
Loans and advances to customers 211,509 49511 100,520 L1e 110,001 (59,720) 412,937
Debt securities 101,799 4920 3416 - 19,710 (8,555) 121,290
Commitments and guarantees 145,201 1,717 424 - - - 147,342
Other financial assets 72,441 - - 5.109 2,184 (2.1 845 77550
Total 1,316,593 56,148 104,360 6,225 131,895 (70,459) 1,544,762 .
The table below analyses amounts past due but not impaired:
Past due by Past due by .
< 6 months > 6 months Total
Company £000 . £000 . - £000
At 31 March 2015 )
Loans and advances to customers 292 1,057 1,349
Other financial assets 3622 2,291 5913
Total 3914 3,348 7,262
At 3| March 2014
Loans and advances to customers - 1,16 1116
Other financial assets ° 3,155 - 1954 5,109
Total . 3,155 3,070 6,225
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2. Financial risk management. (continued)

2.2 Credit risk (continued)

b. Collateral
The Group holds collateral against loans and advances to customers.

All non-group commerdial lending is secured. Collateral is split by type, as either specific or general.

Specific collateral is readily identifiable, the majority of which will be charges over property or plant and equipment. If necessary

there is a realistic possibility of both taking possession of and realising the collateral.

General collateral will be more difficutt to both identify and realise. ft will usually be a general floating charge over the assets of a
business, and is typically attached to leveraged finance assets. It is not practicable to ascribe a specific value to this collateral.

Unimpaired loans (Ieveis | to 3) are covered by both specific and general collateral. Unimpaired amounts covered by specific
collateral include property lending of £89 million and asset based lending of £210 million which is fully collateralised. Where a loan
is deemed to be impaired (level 4 and 5 assets), the level of the impairment charge is primarily driven by any expected shortfall in

" the collateral value, athough it is also influenced by the ability of the borrower to service the debt.

Collateral is valued independently at the time the loan is made and periodically thereafter on a rolling basis. Management are able
to roll forward a valuation for reporting purposes via a combination of speaﬂc knowledge of the collateral and the application of

general indices.

The table below gives an estimate, of the fair value of collateral that could be realised by the Group as security against exposures to

customers that are individually impaired and past due but not impaired.

Past due Past due .
but not Individually but not Individually
impaired impaired impaired impaired
2015 2015 2014 2014
£000 £000 £'000 £'000
Group .
Property - 1,192 56,097 1,317 64,102
Commercial vehicles and other equipment 5775 6,120 338l 4,784
Guarantees and fixed or floating charges - - - 2,600
Other - - - 343
Collateral held - 6,967 62,217 4,698 71,829
Amount of exposures collateralised (net of specific provisions) 7,124 64,737 4,698 81,319

Company .

Property 1,192 55611 116 63035
Guarantees and fixed or floating charges » - - - 2,600
Other - - - 343
Collateral held : 1,192 55,611 I,1eé 65,978
" Amount of exposures collateralised (net of specific provisions) 1,349 58,128 L6 74,277
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2. Financial risk management (continued)
2.2 Credit risk (continued) |

c. Forbearance

As refinancing and sale options continue to be limited, it is generally in the lender's and borrower's interest to extend certain
facilities at maturity and not to foreclose on the security. This assumes there are no underlying issues regarding the borrower's
ability to continue to service the loan and the level of collateral is expected to be of sufficient quality to secure the principal. .

Unimpaired loans extended in this manner are not categorised as either past due or as renegotiated. As at 31 March 2015, loans
with a carrying value of £69.7 million had been extended (2014: £87.3 million), all of which were property loans.

There are a small number of loans which are overdue but not impaired pending an extension of maturity. As at 31 March 2015
these amounted to £1.3 million (2014: £1.1 million).

Some loans were renegotiated on substantially different terms than before. Typically these loans include revised covenants and
higher margins to reflect higher credit risk as well as having extended maturities. But for these renegotiations the loans would

have been deemed to have been impaired. As at 31 March 2015 the carrying value of all loans renegotiated was £23.2 million
(2014: £54.6 million).

d. Credit risk concentrations

The Group monitors concentrations of credit risk by geogvraphic location and by industry sector. The following tables show an
analysis of credit risk by Ipcation and by sector.The location for loans and advances is determined by reference to the location of
- the borrower, and debt securities are recorded based on the location of the issuer of the security.

The sector analysis is based on Global Industry Classification Standards and includes derivatives, loans and advances to banks, loans
and advances to customers, debt securities, commitments and guarantees, but excludes “other financial assets”.
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2. Financial risk management (continued)

22 Credit risk (continued)

Total 1,348,894

/ . UK and
Channel Other US and
Islands Europe Canada Other Total
Credit risk by location £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Group .
At 31 March 2015
Cash and balances at central banks 639,240 7 - - 639,247
Derivatives 14,285 942 - - 15,227
Loans and advances to banks . 6313 61,153 6,737 19,962 94,165
Loans and advances to customers 356,644 39,153 - - 395797
Debt securities 78,152 24,109 7,028 - 109,289
Commitments and guarantees 1,838 10,778 - - 12,616
Other financial assets ' < 40,025 30,176 2935 11,090 84,226
Total - . 1,136,497 166,318 16,700 31,052 1,350,567
At31March2014 - ) )
Cash and balances at central banks y 759.857 7 - - 759,864
Derivatives 10546 1,676 - - 12222
Loans and advances to banks . : . 9,380 47,583 6,648 13,273 76,884
Loans and advances to customers 363,353 79,460 2 8,458 451,273
Debt securities . 62,586 55,483 2,064 1,157 121,290
Commitments and guarantees i 423 6,097 - - 6520
Other financial assets : . 44,142 60,627 13,990 4871 123,630
Total ' ) 1,250,287 250,933 22,704 27,759 1,551,683
Company A ) )
At 3| March 2015
- Cash and balances at central banks ' 639,240 - - - 639,240
Derivatives 14,285 942 - - 15227
Loans and advances to banks ’ - 1,067 6,737 112 7916
Loans and advances to customers 323,226 39,153 - - 362,379
Debt securities 78,152 24,109 7028 - 109,289
Commitments and guarantees . : 133,178 10,778 - - 143,956
Other financial assets : 38,862 27,722 2,935 3811 73330
Total ) 1,226,943 103,771 16,700 3,923 1,351,337
At 31 March 2014
Cash and balances at central banks 759,857 - - - 759,857
~ Derivatives ) 10,546 1,676 - - 12,222
Loans and advances to banks 1,891 4722 6,648 303 13,564
Loans and advances to customers 324,397 80,080 2 8,458 412937
Debt securities 62,586 55,483 2,064 1457 121,290
Commitments and guarantees 141,245 - 6,097 - - 147,342
Other financial assets . 48,372 23353 2222 3,603 77,550 ‘
171,411 10,936 13,521 1,544,762
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2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.2 Credit risk (continued)

. 2015 2014
Credit risk by industry sector £000 £000
Group
Materials 4,648 17,304
Industrials 105,214 62813
Consumer discretionary 70061 71202
Consumer staples 18,551 33511
Health care 9,475 7,446
Financial (se€ below) 166,887 155,799
Real estate (see below) 142,450 205,185
IT and telecoms 437 13,604
Governments and Central Banks 708,292 797,264
Private persons ' 3054 5,506
Related party loans, commitments and guarantees 37272 58419
Total . 1,266,341 1,428,053

} 1 .

Cémpany )
Materials 22 13,498
Consumer discretionary 2619 14,225
Consumer staples - 12,938
Health care 2,737 1,286
Financial (see below) 80483 92473
Real estate (see below) 141,044 203,967
IT and telecoms - |3,60'4
Governments and Central Banks 697,297 783452 )
Private persons 3,052 5.506
Related party loans, commitments and guarantees . 350,753 326,263
Total 1,278,007

1,467,212
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2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.2 Credit risk (continued)

Financial and real estate sector exposures are analysed as follows:

Group Company

2015 2014 2015 2014
Financial sector £000 £'000 £'000 £'000,
Short term interbank exposures 90,208 76,676 6927 . 13,351
Investment grade securities - . 10,257 49,985 10,257 49,985
Cashfinvestment backed lending 13,057 - ' 9974 -
Finance companies - 3,062 - 3,062°
Other . 53,365 26076 53325 26,075

Total ' 166,887 155,799 80,483 . 92,473
Short term interbank lending and investment grade securities are held for quﬁidity management purposes.

1

. Group Company
' ) 2015 2014 2015 ’ 2014
Real estate sector £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Senior loans 121,308 159,740 119,902 158,522
Subordinated/mezzanine loans T 21,142 45,445 21,142 . 45445
Total ’ 142,450 205,185 141,044 203,967

Real estate exposures are generally supported by income generated by a large number of tenants from a wide variety of industry
sectors. Exposures are broadly evenly split between the major property types (retail, office and industrial) and are located
predominantly within the UK. There are no material exposures to loans with elements of development financing.

2;3 Market risk

Market risk arises as a result of the Group's activities in interest rate, currency, equity and debt markets and comprises interest rate, .-
foreign exchange and equity and debt price risk. During the year, exposure to market risk has continued to be small in relation to
capital, as trading activities have been focused on servicing client requirements rather than on proprietary risk-taking. Market risk
arising in the Company's subsidiary undertakings is immaterial.

Limits on market risk exposure are set by the PO Group Assets and Liabilities Committee. Monitoring of market risk limits and
determination of trading profits are undertaken, independently of the dealing area. Risk limits are complemented by other measures
and controls, including stress testing to estimate the losses that coutd occur when markets behave in'unusually volatile ways and
with little liquidity.

N

Market risks associated with treasury and equity positions are described below with a description of risk management and the levels
of risk. )
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2. Financial risk management (continued)

23 Market risk (continued)

Equities
The Group has exposure 1o equity price risk through holdings of equity investments. Each position is approved by senior
management and is monitored on an individual basis. The table below shows the Group’s equity price risk by location. \
UK and
Channel Other
Islands Europe Total
Equity price risk by location - . £000 - £000 . £000.
Group .
At 31 March 2015
Equity investments ‘ . 50,100 4806 98,161
" At 31 March 2014 : ' '
Equity investments ‘ 50038 48382 98,420
Company ' »
. At 3] March 2015° . . )
- Equity investments ) 50,100 47,036 97,136
At 31 March 2014

Equity investments 50,038 © 47318 97.356

The equity exposure to “Other Europe” consists principally of minority investments held in other Rothschild Group companies.

If the price of all the equities weré to fall by 5 per cent, then for the Group there would be a post-tax charge to the income statement
of £36,000°and a post-tax charge to equity of £3,885,000 (2014: £42,000 and £3,846,000 respectively), and for the Company there
would be a post-tax charge to the income statement of £nil and a post-tax charge to equity of £3,885,000 (2014: £nil and £3,846,000
respectively). Similarly, if the price of all the equities and of those equities on which derivative instruments are dependent were to rise
by 5 per cent, then for the Group there would be a post-tax credit to the income-statement of £36,000 and a post-tax credit to equity
of £3,885,000 (2014: £42,000 and £3,846,000 respectively), and for the Company there would be a post-tax credit to the income
statement of £nil and a post-tax credit to the equity of £3,885,000 (2014: £nil and £3,846,000 respectively).
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2. Financial risk management (continued)
23 ‘ ’

Currency risk’

Market risk (continued)

The table below summarises net exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk measured by reference to the foreign currency
exposures of monetary assets and liabilities after taking account of positions in derivatives.

Group Company
Long/(Short) Long/(Short)
2015 2014 2015 2014
£'000 £000 £000 £'000
Us$ 6535 16,233 (85) 144
Euro ‘ 683 ! 82 m - (432)
Other 16,859 7843 45 [N

Iif the valué of these currencies fell by 5 per cent against sterlfing, then for the Group there would be a post-tax cha;“ge to the
income statement of £963,000 (2014: £954,000 ) and for the Company there would be a post-tax credit to the income statement

of £2,000 (2014: £7,000).

If the value of these currencies rose by 5 pér cent against sterling, then for the Group there would be a post-tax credit to the
income statement of £963,000 (2014: £954,000) and for the Company there would be a post-tax charge to the income statement

of £2,000 (2014: £7,000).

Interest rate risk

The following table summarises exposure to interest rate risk by showing the impact on the fair value of interest-bearing assets and
liabilities, and of interest rate derivatives, if base interest rates in each currency shown moved up by | per cent. This table includes all
interest rate risk, including that within the treasury and banking businesses and also the structural interest rate exposure that arose
from the rejnvestment of shareholders' funds. '

-~

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 . 2014
£000 ~£000 £000 £000
£ YY) (736) (378) (724)
Uss$ . 47 192 47 192
Euro . ' O 84 (5) 84

2.4  Liquidity risk - _
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that an entity cannot meet its cash obligations as they fall due. Liquidity risk arises principally from
the mismatch of contractual maturities of assets and liabilities inherent in the business, including contingent fiabilities.

The Group is subject to both an internal liquidity policy, which has been reviewed and approved by the PO Group Assets and
Liabilities Committee, and external regulatory requirements. Liquidity is measured on a behaviourally adjusted basis and on a
stressed basis. The stressed behaviour of assets and liabilities can, in certain scenarios, be more adverse than their contractual
maturity (for example, loans advanced to customers:may not be repaid on their contractual maturity dates).

Liquidity is monitored daily independently of the front‘ofﬂceTreasury staff responsible for day-to-day liquidity management.

The Group measures its liquidity risk quantitatively against a Liquidity Coverage Ratio ("LCR") limit in line with the requirements of
the regulator'sliquidity regime.The LCR considers the Group's eligible “Buffer” assets against the cumulative net cash flows payable
under its most severe stress test. Only those assets of the highest quality can be treated as eligible for inclusion in the LCR.

The Group's internal liquidity policy requires it to keep an LCR in excess of 100% at the 3-month time horizon.At 3| March 2015,
the LCR was significantly in excess of both this internal limit and regulatory requirements. .

The tables below analyse the Group’s financial assets and liabilities based on contractual maturity.

Page 42 | N M Rothschild & Sons Limited | Registered Number 925279



Notes to the financial statements

(forming part of the financial statemenfs)

2. Financial risk management (continued)
2.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

Demand/ No fixed
’ next day 2 days-3m 3m-lyr > lyr maturity Total
Group £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
At 31 March 2015
Cash and balances at central banks ‘ 639,247 - ’ - - - 639,247
Loans and advances to banks - 79735 11,307 3,083 40 - 94,165
Derivatives - 993 12,258 1976 B 15,227
Loans and advances to customers 26017 54,071 127,796 206,379 (18,466) 395,797
Debt and equity securities - 50,200 10,274 48815 98,161 207,450
Other financial assets . 11975 72,162 9 - 70 - 84,226
Total financial assets 756,974 188,733 . 153,430 257,280 79,695 1,436,112
Deposits by banks 278836 2,194 - - - 281,027
Customer deposits 62,685 34,122 156,969 210049 - 463,825
- Derivatives 2 . 19 589 - - 610
Other financial liabilities - 12,328 o799 - - 13,127
Total financial liabilities 341,523 - 48,660 158,357 210,049 - 758,589
At 3| March 2014' .
Cash and balances at central banks 759,864 - - - - 759,864
Loans and advances to banks 66,773 6,331 .398 3382 - 76,884
Derivatives .2 1,088 4,938 6,194 - 12,222
Loans and advances to customers 43,698 84,803 117316 225277 (19.821) 451,273
Debt and equity securities 299 15,407 10,452 95,132 98,420 219710
Other financial asset} 2,777 120,740 2 b - 123,630
Total financial assets 873,413 228,369 133,106 330,096 78,599 1,643,583
Deposits by banks 308,361 2025 5.869 - - 316,255
Customer deposits - 66,411 83,904 252,542 253,561 - 656,418
Derivatives 115 752 333 182 - 1,382
Other financial liabilities - 14,740 - - - 14,740

Total financial liabilities 374,887 101,421 258,744 253,743 - 988,795

! Certain prior year amounts have been restated as explained in note | (page 22).
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2. Financial risk management (continued)
2.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

Demand/ . No fixed

_ next day 2 days-3m 3m-lyr > lyr maturity Total
Company £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 3| March 2015
Cash and balances at central banks 639,240 ’ - - - - 639,240
Loans and advances to banks : 7916 - - - - 7916
Derivatives - 993 12,258 1,976 - 15,227
Loans and advances to customers 26,103 28,686 73,668 251,742 (17.820) 362379
Debt and equity securities - 50,200 10,274 48815 97,136 206,425
Other financial assets . - 73330 - - - 73,330
Total financial assets . 673259 153,209 96,200 302,533 79316 1,304,517
Deposits by banks: . 278,836 2,191 - - - 281,027
Customer deposits 76,060 33970 156,969 210,049 - 477,048
Derivatives 2 19 589 - - 610
Other financial habilities - 12,247 799 - - 13,046
Total financial liabilities 354,898 . 48,427 158,357 210,049 - 771,371
At 3| March 2014
Cash and balances at central banks 759,857 - - - - 759,857
Loans and advances to banks . 13,564 - - - - 13,564
Derivatives . . 2 1,088 4,938 6,194 - 12,222
Loans and advances to customers 43,698 64,340 72,121 251,599 (18.821y 412937
Debt and equity securities 299 15,407 10,452 95,132 97,356 218,646
Other financial assets - ' 77,550 - - - 77.550
Total financial assets 817420 158,385 87,511 352,925 78,535 1,494,776
Deposits by banks 309,730 2,025 4,500 - - 316,255
Customer deposits 73273 83,904 252,542 253,561 - 663,280
Derivatives 115 752 333 . 182 - 1382
Other financial liabilities - 14,659 - - - 14,659
Total financial liabilities . 383,118 101,340 257,375 253,743 - 995,576 .
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2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.5 Maturity of:ﬁnancial liabilities

The following tables show undiscounted contractual cash flows, including interest, payable by the Group and the Corﬁpany on
financial liabilities, analysed by remaining contractual maturity at the balance sheet date. Loan commitments and guarantees are
included at the earliest date they can be drawn down or called upon.This table does not reflect the liquidity position of the Group

or Company.

Demand/ 2 days>-3m .

next day 3m-lyr lyr-5yrs > Syrs Total
Group £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2015
Deposits by banks 278,836 2,209 - - - 281,045
Customer deposits 62,685 . 36,253 170339 218,406 - 487,683
Other liabilities - 12,328 _ 799 - - 13,127
Total 341,521 50,790 171,138 218,406 - 781,855
Loan commitments and guarantees - 12,616 - - - 12,616
At 3| March 2014’ ]
Deposits by banks 308,365 2,031 - 5914 - - 316310
Customer deposits 66,565 85,859A 269,376 260,372 - 12,385 694,557
Other liabilties - 14,740 - - - 14,740
Total 374,930 102,630 275,290 260,372 . 12,385 1,025,607
Loan commitments and guarantees - 6,520 - - - 6,520
Company
At 3| March 2015 )
Deposits by banks 278,836 2,209 ' - - - 281,045
Customer deposits 76,060 36,101 170,339 218,406 - 500906
Other liabilities - 12,247 799 - - 13,046
Total 354,896 50,557 171,138 218,406 - . 794,997
Loan commitments and guarantees - 143,956 = - - 143,956
At 31 March 2014
Deposits by banks - 309,734 2,031 4,545 - - 316310
Customer deposits 73427 85,859 269,376 260372 12,385 - 701,419
Other liabilities - 14,659 - - - 114,659
Total 383,161 102,549 273,921 260,372 12,385 1,032,388
Loan commitments and guarantees - 147,342 - - -

' Certain prior year amounts have been restated as explained in note | (page 22).

147,342
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2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.6 Capital management
The Company's capital management policy is to ensure that it is strongly. capitalised and compliant with regulatory requirements.

The Prudential Regulation Authority (“PRA™) is responsible for setting and monitoring the Company's capital requirements. A firm'’s
minimum regulatory capital is derived from a combination of the requirements from Pillar | and Pillar 2 rules. Pillar | sets out the
minimum capital requirements required to meet credit, market and operational risk. Pillar 2 lays down a supervisory review process
to evaluate an institution's own internal process to assess its own capital needs including capital for risks not covered by Pillar 1.The
credit risk capital requirement that the Company, and certain other subsidiaries which are part of its solo-consolidated regulatory
group, are required to hold is largely determined by their balance sheets and off-balance sheet positions weighted according to

the credit rating and type of exposure to counterparties. Processes are in place to ensure compliance with the minimum capital
requirements.

An annual Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment. Process (“ICAAP”), which is subject to regulator review, is also undertaken to
review the risks and capital requirements of the business. The Group's risk management processes are designed to ensure that all
risks are identified and that they are covered by capital or other appropriate measures.

The table below summarises the composition of regulatory capital for the solo-consolidated group.

2015 ’ 2014
£m £m
Tier | capital
Called up share capital 57.7 577
Share premium account 979 979
Retained earnings and other reserves 188.6 (980
Deductions from tier | capital* - . (119.8) ) (131.9)
Common equity tier | capital . 2244 2217
Total tier | capital 2244 221.7
Tier 2 capital ’ R
Perpetual subordinated notes " 1243 1243
Deductions from tier 2 capital® 3 : (78.5) (94.8)
Total tier 2 capital ) 458 29.5
Total capital resources . 270.2 251.2
- Risk weighted assets (notional - unaudited)
Credit risk : ’ 9745 ° 907.0
Market and counterparty risk 460 89.7
Operational risk ) 559.0 5120
) 1,579.5 1,508.7
Capital ratios (unaudited)
Common equity tier | capital o v 14.2% 14.7%
Tier | capital 14.2% S 147%
Total capital . 17.1% 16.7%

. * Deductions from tier | and tier 2 capital relate to intangible assets, deferred tax assets and equity or loan investments infto subsidiaries or other related parties.
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3. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants. For financial instruments carried at fair value, market prices or rates are used to determine that fair value where an
.active market exists (such as a recognised exchange), as it is the best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument. Market
prices are not, however, available for certain financial assets and liabilities held or issued by the Group.Where no active market
price or rate is available, fair values are estimated using present value or other valuation techniques, using inputs based on market
conditions existing at the balance sheet date.The valuation may be derived from quotations received from various sources. Where
the market is illiquid, the quotations may not be supported by prices from actual market transactions.

Valuation techniques are generally applied to over the counter derivative transactions and unlisted debt and equity securities.

The most frequently applied pricing models and valuation techniques include discounted cashflow techniques and option valuation
models. The values derived from applying these techniques are significantly affected by judgements made on the choice of valuation
model used and the assumptions made concerning factors such as the amounts and timing of future cashflows, discount rates,
volatility, and credit quality. :

The methods adopted to determine the fair value of each typé of financial asset or fiability are summarised below:

= Cash and balances at central banks, loans and advances to banks and deposits by banks. The fair values of these lnstruments
are materially the 'same as their carrying values ‘due to their short term nature.

®  Loans and advances to customers.The fair values of loans and advances to customers are based on observable market
transactions, obtained from market data providers where available.Where observable market transaction data is not available,
fair value is estimated using valuation models that incorporate a range of input assumptions. These assumptions include
estimates of current market pricing and valuations of collateral held, adjusted by appropriate indices.

= Customer deposits. The fair values of these instruments are determined by discounting the future cashflows at current market
interest rates for deposits of similar remaining maturities, adjusted for the appropriate credit spread.

s Other financial assets and liabilities. Fair value is considered to be the same as carrying value for these assets.

= Derivatives and debt and equity securities are carried in the balance sheet at fair value, usually determined using quoted
market prices or other observable inputs. Debt securities or unlisted equity securities for which no price is available are valued
by discounting expected futuré cashflows at market interest rates adjusted for appropriate credit spreads or using other
valuation techniques. :

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities have been classified into a three level valuation hierarchy, whereby the valuation level
is determined using the following criteria:

Level I: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets ‘or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (|e as

. prices) or indirectly (ie derived from market data to a significant extent). This category includes instruments that are valued based
on quoted prices for similar instruments and for which significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect
differences between the instruments. '

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based primarily on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Typically
this will be used for instruments with uncertain cashflows and the valuation will therefore depend upon the expected cashflows,
estimated maturity and the discount factor used.
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3. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost

Measured using

Carrying value Fair value Level | ‘Level 2 Level 3
Group £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2015 : '
Financial assets .
Loans and advances to banks 94,165 94,165 - - 94,165 -
Loans and advances to customers 395,797 365,264 - 307,516 57,748 .
Other financial assets 84,226 - 84,226 - 84,226 -
Total . , ’ 574,188 543,655 - . 485,907 57,748
Financial liabilities .
Deposits by banks 281,027 280,988 - 280,988 -
Customer deposits 463,825 466,505 . - : 466,505 -
Other financial liabilities 13,127 13,127 - 13,127 -
Total 757,979 760,620 s - . 760,620 -
At 3| March 2014
Finar}cial assets ‘ . :
Loans and advances.to banks 76,884 76,884 . - 76,884 -
Loans and advances to customers . 448,075 423,791 . - 349,514 74,277
Other financial assets 123,630 123,630 - 123,630 -
Total 648,589 624,305 - 550,028 74,277
Financial liabilities . :
Deposits by banks 316,255 316,255 ’ - ’ 316,255 -
Customer deposits 656,418 663964 - 663,964 -
Other financial liabilities 14,740 14,740 - 14,740 -

Total -~ 987,413 994,959 - 994,959 -
! Certain prior.year amounts have been restated as explained in note | (page 22). '

Measured using

Carrying value Fair value Level | Level 2 Level 3
Company £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
At 3| March 2015 . . ' .
Financial assets '
Loans and advances to banks . . 7916 7916 - 7916 : -
Loans and advances to customers 362,379 331,886 . - ) 274,138 57,748
Other financial assets 73,330 73330 - 73,330 -
Total 443,625 413,132 - 355,384 57,748
Financial liabilities .
Deposits by banks 281,027 281,027 - 281,027 -
Customer deposits 477,048 479,748 - 479,748 -
Other financial liabilities 13,046 13,046 - 13,046 -
Total ' 771,121 773,821 - 773,821 -
At 3] March 2014
Financial assets .
Loans and advances to banks 13,564 13,564 - 13,564 -
Loans and advances to customers 409,739 385,455 - 311,178 74277
Other financial assets 77,550 77550 - 77,550 -
Total ) 500,853 476,569 . - 402,292 74,277
Financial liabilities
Deposits by banks ’ 316,255 ' 316,255 - 316,255 -
Customer deposits 663,280 - 670,826 - 670,826 -
Other financial liabilities 14,659 14,659 ' - 14,659 -
Total 994,194 1,001,740 . - 1,001,740 -
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3. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value

Measured using

Carrying value equal

to fair value Level | - Level 2 Level 3
Group £000 £'000 £000" £'000
At 31 March 2015
Financial assets
Derivatives 15227 ) - 15227 -
Debt securities 109,289 68,302 39,107 1,880

. Equiity securities 98,161 26,471 1,219 70471
Total 222,677 94773 55,553 72,351
Financial liabilities ’
Derivatives 610 - 610 -
Total 610 - 610 -
At 3| March 2014
Financial assets
Loans and advances to customers 3,198 - 3,198 -
Derivatives ) 12222 - 12222 -
Debt securities 121,250 33,838 84,872 2,580
Equity securities 98,420 27454 986 69,980
Total 235,130 61,292 ’ 101,278 72,560
Financial liabilities
Derivatives 1,382 - 1,382 -
Total . 1,382 - 1,382 -
‘ Measured using
Carrying value equal

to fair value Level 1 Level2 Level 3
Company £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 31 March 2015 )
Financial assets
Derivatives 115227 - 15,227 -
Debt securities - 109289 68,302 39,107 1,880
Equity securities 97,136 25,446 1,219 70471
Total 221,652 93,748 " 55,553 72,351
Financial liabilities
Derivatives 610 - 610" -
Total 610 - 610 -
At 31 March 2014
Financial assets
Loans and advances to customers 3,198 ’ - 3,198 -
Derivatives 12222 . - 12,222 -
Debt securities 121,290 33,838 84,872 2,580
Equity securities 97356 26,390 986 : 69,980
Total 234,066 60,228 101,278 72,560
Financial liabilities
Derivatives 1382 . - 1,382 -
Total 1,382 -- 1,382 -
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3. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Assets measured at fair value based on Level 3

There were no significant transfers between assets valued at Level | and at Level 2 in the year. The movements in assets valued ‘
using Level 3 valuation are as follows:

Group and Company

. ) 2015 2014
Available-for-sale financial assets o £'000 ] £'000
At | April . 72,560 73,767
Total gains and (losses)
—in income statement -(as “other operating income”) ‘ : 272 161
- through other comprehensive income (*‘change in fair value of assets classified as available-for-sale") 491 (487)
Settlements ’ ’ (571). . (797)
Exchange and other movements . : ) (401) (84
At 3| March : ’ 72,351 . 72,560

Total gains of £272,000 (2014: £161,000) were included in the income statement in respect of assets held at the end of the
reporting period. .

The table below sets out informatiori about significant unobservable inputs used at 31 March 2015 in measuring financial
instruments categorised as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy: :

Fair value
) Fair value Valuation Unobservable measurement sensitivty
Description £'000 technique input to Unobservable input
Available-for-sale debt securities 1,880 Discounted . Discount rate, default 1% increase in discount rate
' cashflow analysis and recovery data of reduces fair value by £42,000
underlying assets 1% reduction in discount rate
increases fair value by £43,000
Available-for-sale equity securities - 50,000 External valtiation based n/a n/a
- on asset value :
20471 Valuations of the underlying Market based percentage .0.19% decrease in assets
businesses of assets under management  under management multiple
(2%) ’ decreases fair value by
. £845,000
Liquidity discount . 10% increase in the liquidity
(20%) . discount would reduce fair

value by £2.559,000

" Page 50 | N M Rothschild & Sons Limited | Registered Num\ber 925279



Notes to the financial statements

(forming part of the financial statements)

4. Net interest income

2015 2014
£'000 £000
Interest and similar income .
Loans and advances ' _ 40,249 '46.2 18
Available-for-sale financial assets . 1,988 1,547
Other : : 1,083 -
: 43,320 47,765
Interest expense and similar charges . )
Amounts due to banks and customers 20,768 26,759
20,768 ) 26,759

' The prior year net interest income has been restated as explained in note | (page 22).

Included within interest income is £3,206,000 (2014: £3,914,000) in respect of interest income accrued on impaired financial assets.

5. Net fee and commission income

2015 2014
£'000 £'000
Fee and commission income . ’
Banking and credit-related fees and commissions B! ) 3 ‘ 698 ) ) 1,689
Global financial advisory fees receivable \ 428,41 | y 339,783
Other fees ' ' 27,809 - 27074
456,918 ) 368,546
Fee and commission expense : '
Global financial advisory fees payable ) 32811 17,733
Other fees payable 5 283 276
) 33,094 18,009
'The prior year net fee and commission income has been resta}ed as explained in note | (page 22). ’ )

Global financial advisory fees payable represent fqes paid to other members:of the Rothschild Group where the Corrzpany has
. worked in collaboration with another group company on a transaction, or. fees paid to any subcontracted parties outside the
Rothschild Group. ‘

s

6. Net trading income

. 2015 2014

. £'000 £000

. Foreign exchange gains i 801 1
Interest rate instruments — trading . 441 495
Interest rate instruments — hedging . S 3 M
Equities designated as fair value through profit and loss C o . - . 25

‘ 1,245 530

Net trading income arises from hedging strategies, movements in the fair value of financial assets and liabilities held for trading
(principally foreign exchange instruments and traded loans), or designated as fair value through profit and loss and interest thereon. -

Gains and losses on the ineffective portion of designated hedging relationships are also recognised in net trading income.
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7. Other operating income

2015 2014
£000 £000
Operating lease income 8,167 7.488
Rental income 102 -
Dividend income 1,509 1,774
Gain on disposal of fixed assets 214 65
Gains less losses from disposals of loans and available-for-sale financial assets (2,632) (1,330)
Other ) 5901 5.067.
13,261 13,064
8. Operating expenses
2015 2014
Note £000 £'000
Staff costs . 9 301,303 . 255,260
Administrative expenses 65,242 58,444
366,545 - 313,704
The auditor's remuneration was gs follows:
) 2015 2014'
£000 £000
Audit fees relating to the Company } 208 166
Audit fees relating to subsidiary undertakings and other affiliates 471 475
\ 679 641
Remuneration payable to the auditor and its associates for non-audit work was as follows:
. .o 2015 2014
} . ) ) £000 £000
Audit-related assurance services ' 44 43
Tax services 151 31
Other services 23 107
218 181
9. Staff costs
2015 2015 2014 2014
Group Company Group Company
Note £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Fixed and variable remuneration 241,543 160,254 203917 135,634
Social security costs 27,853 21,106 23,155 17,354
Staff benefits and other staff costs 18,001 11,751 18,455 11,146
Pension costs B
- Defined benefit plans 21 7,475 7378 3,753 3597
— Defined contribution plans 21 5,641 3,686 5124 3328
Post-retirement benefits 790 790 856 856
Total staff costs 301,303 204,965 255,260 " 171915

! Certain prior year amounts have been restated as explained in note | (page 22).
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9. Staff costs (continued)

The number of persons employed as at 31 March was as follows:

2015 2015 2014 2014

) . Group Company Group Company

Global Financial Advisory 647 387 62 358
Banking and asset management ) 229 26 217 25
Support and other 282 247 272 231

1,158 ' 660 - 1,101 614

The average number of persons employed during the year ended 31 March was as follows:

2015 2015 2014 2014

Group - Company Group Company

Global Financial Advisory 636 379 - 624 - 364
Banking and asset management C 227 27 203 T 26
Support and other o 275 T 240 270. 230
1,138 646 <. 1,097 620

Long term incentive schemes b ‘ )

As part of its variable pay strategy, the Group Jperates long term incentive schemes for the benefit of employees.T;hese schemes
consist of deferred cash bonuses and, for certain key staff, various deferred share-based payment awards.

The cash awards are paid one, two and three years after the year of the award, and the expense is recognised over the two, three
and four year periods from the start of the year of the award to the date of payment.These awards are paid on the condition that
. the recipient is still an employee of the Group.

A commitment to employees exists in connection with deferred remuneration. Some of this has not yet accrued because it relates
to a future service period. The amount of potential future payments that have not yet accrued is £34,905,000 (2014: £26,889,000).

The objective of the deferred share-baséq payment awards is to link the reward of certain key staff with the pé‘rformance of the Group.
In addition to the requirement to remain €mployed by the Group, these awards may also be cancelled under specific circumstances.

The terms of the different share-based payment awards are as follows:

Paris Orléans equity scheme

Paris Orléans has granted options in Paris Orléans shares to a number of key staff. Under the Equity Scheme rules, the Equity
Scheme participants have been required to invest in Paris Orléans shares and, for each share owned, Paris Orléans has granted four
share-options. Shares invested in are subject to a four-year lock-up period and the share-options granted are subject to a vesting
period before exercise. A quarter of the share-options vest on each of the third, fourth, fifth and sixth anniversaries of the Equity
Scheme and the share-options are exercisable on the vesting dates, but not later than the tenth aniversary of the award, at a price
of €17.50, €18.00, €19.00 and €20.00 per share. :
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9. Staff costs (continued) |

. Long term incentive schemes (continued)

Movements in the number of share-options outstanding are as follows:

2015 2014
Weighted Average Weighted Average
Exercise Price Exercise Price
Group Number € Number €
At | April 425,000 18.63 - -
Issued , _ = - 425,000 18.63
Forfeited o . - - - -
Expired - - - -~
Cancelled : - - - -
Exercised A .- - - -
At 3| March 425,000 18.63 425,000 18.63
Exercisable at the end of the period . - - - -
2015 . 2014
Weighted Average Weighted Average
Exercise Price Exercise Price
Company Number € Number €
At | April 325,000 18.63 - -
Issued . - - 325,000 18.63
Forfeited ’ - - - -
Expired - - - -
Cancelled - - - -
Exercised - : C - - - -
At 31 March . 325,000 18.63 325,000 18.63
Exercisable at the end of the period - - - -
Share-options outstanding at 3| March were as follows:
Exercise price range € 2015 2014 )
' Number of Weighted average Number of Weighted average
Options contractual life Options contractual life
Group Outstanding (years) Outstanding (years)
17.50 © 106,250 . 85 106,250 9.5
18.00 106,250 85 106,250 9.5
19.00 106,250 85 106,250 9.5
20.00 106,250 85 106,250 9.5
425,000 8.5 425,000 9.5
Exercise price range € - 2015 , 2014
Number of Weighted average Number of Weighted average
Options contractual life . Options contractual life
Company Outstanding (years) - Outstanding _ (years)
1750 81,250 ) 8.5 81,250 9.5
18.00 81,250 85 81,250 9.5
19.00 81250 85 81,250 95
2000 81,250 85 81,250 9.5
325,000 85 325,000 9.5
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9. Staff costs (continued)

Long term incentive schemes (continued)

The options were valued by an independent valuer using a Black-Scholes option valuation model. The key inputs into this model
were the price of the underlying Paris Orléans shares, the expected volatility of the share price (for which the historic volatility

has been the primary consideration), and the estimated exercise date of the options (which is the mid-point between the dates of
vesting and expiry). The valuation was based on the assumption that all recnpxents will remain with the Group.

The fair value of the share-based payments made in the year was £1.0m (2014: £1.9m).This amount is charged to the income
statement over the period of employee service required under the vesting conditions. As the options are equity-settled, there is no
liability booked in the balance sheet in respect of these options, and there is no periodic charge or credit in the income statement

- as the options change in value.

Paris Orléans share-based payments

The Group has committed to pay a number of staff deferred awards in the form of Paris Orléans shares The shares will be delivered
to employees in October 2017 as long as the recipients are still employed by the Group at that time. The value of the shares at the
date of award is expensed over the service period, until vesting in October 2017.The liability is treated as a cash-settled share-based
payment and revalued at each reporting period, with the changes in value recognised in the income statement.

. RCH share-based payments

Certain deferred awards are based on the share Value of Rothschilds Continuation Holdings AG (“RCH"), an intermediate parent of
the Company. Deferred pay based on the value of the RCH shares is accounted for as a cash-settled share-based payment award.

. The fair value of shares awarded is spread over the service period and recognised in the income statement as part of the profit
share charge.

RCH shares are not quoted, but their value is determined each six months by an independent valuation.

The charge for the year arising from share-based payment schemes was as follows:

2015 2015 2014 2014

Group Company Group Company

. . £'000 £000 £'000 ~ £000
Paris Orléans equity scheme ! ) 600 459 251 192
Paris Orléans share-based payments 898 701 543 425
RCH share-based payments 419 419 978 978

1917 . 1,579 1,772 1,595
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[0. Tax .

Tax charged to the income statement:

2015 2014
£'000 £000
Current tax
— Current period ) 15,827 7.809
- Prior year adjustments ’ . (1,868) 351
Total current tax charge 13,959 8,160
Deferred tax
- Origination and reversal of timing differences 11,483 11,390
— Prior year adjustments . ® 635
Total deferred tax charge . 11,474 12,025
Total tax charged to income statement : . 25,433 20,185
Tax on items charged/(credited) to other comprehensive income:
' 2015 2014
. . £'000 ) £000
Deferred tax on available-for-sale financial assets 468 (251)
_ Current tax on available-for-sale financial assets . V 423 3.829
Deferred tax on cash flow hedges ' 2 76
Deferred tax on actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit pension schemes (4.438) 5,156
Deferred tax on the utilisation of tax losses (243) 1,782
- Total tax charged/(credited) to other comprehensive income (3,788) 10,592
. Tax on items credited to equity:
2015 2014
£'000 £000
Current tax on distributions to holders of perpetual instruments 1971 2,384

The tax charged on income differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the standard tax rate as follows:

2015 2014

£000 £'000
Profit before tax : L . 76,991 54,620
Tax calculated at the UK corporation tax rate of 21% (2014: 23%) oL 16,168 12,563
Adjustment to tax charge in respect of prior years _ ’ (1.877) 986
Non tax deductible expenses 669 603
Impact on deferred tax of corporation tax rate change - 3979
Impact on deferred tax of change in tax laws 6,500 -
Effect of different tax rates in other countries - 3,690 1,270
Income not subject to tax . (825) (638)
Previously unrecorded deferred tax now recognised 194 (526) -
Irrecoverable withholding tax . 421 862
Non tax deductible impairment provisions T 657 1,783
Other e (164) (697)
Total tax charged to income statement 25,433 20,185

Further information about deferred tax is presented in note 20.
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[I. Loans and advances

2015 2015 2014 2014
Group Company Group Company
£000 £000 £000 £'000
Loans and advances to banks: .
.Included in cash and cash equivalents 91,042 7916 73,290 13351
~ Other 3,123 .= 338t -
Accrued interest .- - - 213 213
94,165 © 7916 76,884 13,564
Loans and advances to customers:
- Loans and advances to customers — at amortised cost 463,779 427970 503,401 462,425
Loans and advances to customers held for
trading — at fair value - - - 3,198 3,198
Allowance for credit losses 71,997) (70,320) (61,907) (59.720)
Accrued interest 4,015 4,729 6,581 7,034
' 395,797 362,379 451,273 412,937
Loans and advances to customers include finance lease receivables as follows:
' 2015 2014
Group £000 £'000
Gross investment in.finance leases, receivable:
| year or less ‘ 82,285 71,826
S years or less but over | year 147,004 106,635
Over 5 years 4,402 3,052
233,691 181,513
Unearned future finance income on finance leases (35,384) (28,748)
Net investment in finance leases 198,307 152,765
The net investment in finance leases may be analysed as follows:
2015 2014
Group £000 £'000
| year or less 69,668 59996
5 years or less but over | year - 124,726 89,950
Over 5 years 3913 2819
198,307 152,765
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[I. Loans and advances (continued) '

The movement inthe allowance for credit losses on loans and advances to customers is as follows:

Group Company .
Specific  Collective Total Specific  Collective Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
At | April 2014 42,086 19,821 61,907 40,899 18,821 59,720
Charge/(credit) to income statement 11,422 (1,355) . 10067 - 11,778 (1,001) 10,777
Amounts written off . (1,904) - (1904) (640) - (640)
Recoveries 1,901 - 1,901 437 - 437
' Exchange movements . - 26 = 26 26 - 26
At 3| March 2015 53,531 18,466 71,997 52,500 17,820 70,320
At | April 2013 ‘59,525 - 24,296 83,821 57,064 23376 80,440
Charge/(credit) to income statement 5,245 (4,475) 770 . 13820 (4.555) 9,265
Amounts written off ' (24:132) - (24.132) - (29.390) - (29.390)
Recoveries ’ . 2,355 - 2,355 312 - 312
Exchange movements (907) - (907) (907) - (507)
At 31 March 2014 42,086 19,821 61,907 40,899 18,821 59,720

Following the amendments to IAS 39 and IFRS 7,“Reclassification of Financial Assets”, on | July 2008 the Company transferred
from available-for-sale financial assets to loans and advances £347,582,000 of financial assets to which the definition of loans and
advances would apply on the reclassification date. On the reclassification date and on 31 March 2015 the Group had the financial
capacity to keep the loans concerned to their maturity date or for the foreseeable future. The movements in the carrying value and
fair value of the financial assets reclassified are as follows: - .

' : 2015 : 2014

Group and Company . £'000 £000

_Carrying value of assets reclassified at | April . 28,408 91,055
Impairments (415) (345)
Sale and redemptions (23.866) (63.694)

Drawdown of revolving credit facilities . ’ ) ) - 191

Amortisation of frozen available-for-sale reserve : 838 2,18l

Exchange and other movements ) : (2.761) . (980)

Carrying value of assets reclassified at 3|1 March : 2,204 28,408
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II. Loans and advances (continued)

. . 2015 2014
Group and Company £'000 £'000
Fair value of assets reclassified at | April 27,814 86,720
Sales and redemptions ' (23,866) (63.694)
Drawdown of revolving credit facilities - 191
Fair value movements in the period 807 5,306
Exchange and other movements (2,601) (709)

' Fair value of assets reclassified at 31 March 2,154 27,814

As of the reclassification date, the net effective interest rate, after associated funding costs, on reclassified financial assets was

2.25 per cent.

A revaluation gain of £1,222,000 would have been recognised in other comprehensive income in the year to 3| March 2015 had

the assets not been reclassified (2014: £5,651,000).

After reclassification, the reclassified financial assets contributed the following amounts, after associated funding costs, to profit

before tax:
2015 2014
£'000 £'000
Net interest income 181 1,612
Impairment losses (415) (345)
Loss on disposals (408) Q4l1)
Loss before tax on reclassified financial assets (642) (1,144)
12. Debt and equity securities
2015 2015 2014 2014
Group .Company Group -Company
£000 £000 £000 £'000
Debt securities ~ available-for-sale 112,477 112,477 129,328 129,328
Allowance for impairment (3.691) 3.691) (8.555) (8,555)
Accrued interest 503 503 517 ~ 517
Total debt securities — available-for-sale ' 109,289 109,289 121,290 121,290
Equity securities — available-for-sale ‘ 108,088 107,966 108813 108,691 °
Allowance for impairment (|'O,952) (10.830) (41,457) (11,335)
Total equity securities — available-for-sale 97,136 97,136 97,356 97,356
Equity securities — fair value through profit and loss 1,025 - 1,064 -
206,425 219,710 218,646

Total debt and equity securities 207,450
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12. Debt and equity securities (continued)
7 : : 2015 2015 2014 2014
Group Company Group Company
£000 £000 £'000 £000
Debt and equity securities may be analysed as follows: ’ '
~ Debt éecurities
— Listed 108986 108,986 120915 120915
— Unlisted 303 303 375 : 375
Total debt securities 109,289 109,289 121290 121,290
Equity securities
- Listed 26,547 25522 27470 26,406
~ Unlisted 71614 71614 70950 70950
Total equity: securities 98,161 97,136 98,420 97,356
207,450 206,425 219,710 218,646

Total debt and equity securities

Equity securities include shares in Paris Orléans SCA, Third New Court Limited and Rothschild Holding AG, fellow subsidiaries of

Rothschild Concordia SAS.

The movement in the impairment allowance for-debt and equity securities is as follows:

2014 2014

2015 2015
Group Company Group Company

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Debt securities
At | April 8,555 8,555 10,574 10,574
Charge to income statement 1279 1,279 4,084 4,084
Amounts written off (5,450) (5.450) (5925) (5925)
Exchange movements (693) (693) (178) (178)
At 31 March 3,691 3,691 8,555 : 8,555
Equity securities
At | April 11,457 11,335 11,326 11,141
Charge to income statement 944 944 926 904
Exchange movements (354) (354) - -
Amounts written off (1,095) (1,095) - -
Disposals - . - 795y ' 710y
At 31 March 10,952 10,830 11,457 ' 11,335
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12. Debt and equity securities (cont‘inu'ed)

The movement in debt and equity securities is as follows:

2015 2015 2014 ) 2014

Group Company Group Company

. £000 £000 £'000 £'000

At | April v 219,710 218,646 249,702 248,525
Additions . 122,878 122,878 - 20375 19,183
Disposals (sales and redemptions) (133913) (133913) (63.381) 61.979)
Gains/(losses) from changes in fair value 7,390 7,390 ’ .19.587 19,549
Movement in allowance for impairment (2.223) (2.223) . (4.037) (4,100)
Recognised in income statement : T (39) - - -
Unwinding of discount (505) (505) 79 (179)
Movement in accrued interest - ‘ (14) (14) (554) . (554)
Exchange differences ) (5.834) (5.834) (1,803) (1,799)
At 31 March : 207,450 206,425 219,710 218,646

[3. Derivatives

The Group's use of financial instruments, including derivatives, is set out in note 2. A derivative is a financial instrument, the value

of which is derived from the value of another financial instrument, an index or some other variable (the “underlying”"). Typically the
underlying is an interest rate, a currency exchange rate or the price of a debt or equity security. The majority of derivative contracts
are negotiated as to amount, tenor and price between the Group and its counterparties, and are known as “over the counter”
(“OTC") derivatives. The remainder are standardised in terms of their amounts and settlement dates and are bought and sold in
organised markets and are known as exchange traded derivatives.

Derivative instruments are carried at fair value, shown in the balance sheet as separate totals of positive fair values (assets) and
negative fair values (liabilities). Positive fair values represent the cost to the Group of replacing all transactions with a fair value in the
Group’s favour if the counterparties defautt. Negative fair values represent the cost to the Group’s counterparties of replacing all
their transactions with the Group with a fair value in the counterparties’ favour if the Group were to default. Positive and negative
fair values on different transactions are only netted if there is a legal right of set-off, the transactions are with the same counterparty
and the cashflows will be settled on a net basis. Changes in fair values of derivative instruments are recognised in trading income
unless they qualify as cash flow hedges for accounting purposes. '

The Group uses the following derivative financial instruments for both trading and hedging purposes:

»  Forward contracts and futures — contractual obligations to buy or sell financial instruments on a future date at a specified price.
Forward contracts are OTC contracts, whereas futures are exchange traded derivatives.

= Interest rate swaps — transactions in which two parties exchange interest cashflows on a specified notional amount for a
predetermined period. Most swaps are OTC instruments. Interest rate swap contracts generally entail the contractual exchange
of ﬁxed and floating rate interest payments in a single currency.

L Optlons — contractual agreements under which the seller grants the purchaser the right but not the obligation to buy or sell by
or at a future date a specified quantity of a financial instrument at a predetermined price.The purchaser pays a premium to the
seller for this rlght Options may be transacted OTC or on a regulated exchange.

Derivatives may be transacted for hedging or trading purposes. The Group. enters into’ derivative transactions primarily for the
purpose of hedging exposures in the non-trading book. The accounting treatment of hedge transactions depends on the nature
of the hedging relationship and whether the hedge qualifies as such for accounting purposes. Derivative transactions may qualify
as hedges for accounting purposes as either fair value or cash flow hedges. Trading involves taking positions with the intention of
profiting from changes in market variables such as interest rates. :
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13. Derivatives (continued)

Fair value hedges

The Group's fair value hedges consist of interest rate swaps that are used to protect against changes in the fair value of fixed rate
lending, fixed rate debt securities and fixed rate borrowing.

The fair value of derivatives designated as fair value hedges at 3| March 2015 was £6,167,000 (2014: £9,742,000). Fair value losses
of £1,522,000 (2014: £5,674,000) on derivatives held in qualifying fair value hedging relationships are included in net trading income.
Fair value gains of £1,525,000 (2014: £5,673,000), which relate to changes in fair value of hedged items attributable to the hedged
risk, are also included in net trading income.

Cash flow hedges

The Group is exposed to variability in future interest cash flows on non-trading assets and liabilities which receive or pay interest at
variable rates.

Gains and losses on the effective portion of interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Gains or losses on any ineffective portion of these swaps are recognised immediately in the income statement.

No profit or loss was recognised in the income statement in respect of the ineffective portion of cash flow hedges (2014: £nil).

The fair value of derivatives designated as cash flow hedges at 31 March 2015 was £8,054,000 (2014: £1,250,000). At

31 March 2015, an unrecognised fair value gain of £3,000 (2014: loss of £8,000) associated with these derivatives has remained
deferred in shareholders’ equity and will be transferred to the income statement when the hedged cashflows affect profit or loss.
Amounts relating to cash flow hedges transferred to the income statement during the period are included in net trading income.

The schedule of cash flows hedged is as follows:

) <lyr 1-3 yrs 3-5yrs 5-10yrs > 10yrs
Group and Company £'000 : £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
As at 3| March 2015 '
Cash outflows (liabilities) ©) - - - -
As at 3] March 2014
Cash inflows (assets) ) 91 74 _ _ .
Notional principal Positive fair value Negative fair value
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Group and Company ) : ’
Contracts held for risk management purposes
Derivatives designated as hedges
Fair value interest rate swaps 275,000 378,284 6,167 9,922 - (180)
Cash flow interest rate swaps 62,550 87,980 8054 1583 - (333)
337,550 466,264 14,221 11,505 - (513)
Contracts held for trading purposes
Forward foreign exchange contracts 123,176 217,171 993 623 (610) (769)
Interest rate swaps 600 10,572 13 94 - (100)
123,776 227,743 1,006 717 (610) (869)
461,326 694,007 15,227 12,222 610) (1,382)
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14. Othef assets

2015 2015 ’ 2014 2014

Group Company Group Company

£'000 £'000 -£'000 . £'000

‘Accounts receivable and prepayments 83,114 58,664 114,048 77,637
Accrued income 28,597 22,094 11,068 2952
Traded loans awaiting settlement 742 742 4,107 4,107
Other : 5672 3,142 3435 1,848
' 118,125 84,642 132,658 86,544

' Certain prior year amounts have been restated as explained in note | (page 22).

Accounts receivable are net of allowances of £1,809,000 (2014: £2,816,000). Accrued income is net of allowances of £1,046,000
(2014: £1,754,000).

5. Investments in associates and joint ventures

N : [ . _
. : 2015 2014'

Group £000 £000
At | April 44,652 46,151
Additions : . - 530
Disposals ' (5432) (1,7t1)
Share of results (net of tax) » . ' 4,866 4951
Losses from changes in fair value ) (28) (281)
Dividends } : ) (4472) (4.722)
Exchange differences Y 3 (759) (266)
At 31 March ' ‘ : ' 38,827 44,652

! Investments in associates and joint ventures has been restated as explained in note | (page 22).

Disposals during the year relate to the Company's investment in Quintus European Mezzanine Fund Limited Partnership following’
. returns of principal in the underlying assets in the fund. '

The Groups interest in associates and joint ventures, which are not material, are as follows:

2015 - 2014

Share of Share of

Share of profit/(loss) Share of profit/(loss)

Country Ownership Description  net assets after tax ~ net assets after tax

of residence interest of business £000 £000 £'000 £000

Rothschitd & Cie Banque France 9.38% ) Bank 28091 1,295 27960 1,179
Quintus European Mezzanine . Investment vehicle for )

Fund Limited Partnership Jersey 50% institutional investors . 4908 1,424 10,657 305

N M Rothschild Europe Partnership UK 50% Financial advisory 5235 2,233 4,843 1,843

» Rothschild Europe SNC France 50% Financial advisory 298 42 769 1,731

Investor Perceptions Limited UK 50% Investor research 295 (128) 423 (107)

38,827 4,866 44,652 4,951

The Company's interests in associates and joint ventures are held at historical cost of £34,766,000 (2014: £40,1 98,000).
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16. Structured entities

A structured entity is one which has been designed so that voting or similar rights are not the dominant factor in deciding who controls
the entity. It will often have restricted activities and a narrow or well-defined objective and can include some investment funds.

In most cases it is clear under IFRS 10 that the Group need not consolidate its investments in structured entities. However, some
structured entities are managed by the Group in the form of funds in which the Group's own money is invested. For these, a
judgement must be made whether there is a need to consolidate these funds or not. To do this, a combined assessment of two key
indicators is made: ’ ’

®  Remuneration and other economic interests in aggregate
®  Kick-out rights

To primarily assess economic interests it is considered, at a particular level of returns, how much of any further increase or decrease
in the performance of a fund accrues to the manager (“the variability of the economic interest™). The level of returns at which

this is measured is the level at which performance fees begin to accrue. A high level of variability would support the conclusion

that a manager might be a principal (and would probably consolidate the managed fund). Whereas, a low level of variability would
indicate that a manager might be an agent for the other investors (and would probably not consolidate). Additionally, negligible rights
for the investors to remove the manager or transfer their funds might indicate that a manager. is a principal (and would probably
consolidate) while strong rights might suggest that a manager is an agent (and would probably not consolidate). The Group's
judgement is guided by both IFRS 10 and market practice. .

y oo . .
Interest in unconsolidated structured entities

The following table shows the Group's interest in unconsolidated structured entities. These entities are both managed debt funds
and collateralised loan obligation (CLO) securitisations. The assets in the entities are not originated by the Group but are a diverse
pool of leveraged buyout debt assets which are sourced specifically for inclusion in these entities. The Group- will typically make an
investment within these structures which will be held on balance sheet as either available-for-sale debt securities or as an equity
holding. The off-balance sheet commitment is an undrawn loan facility to a CLO warehouse for which NMR will act as Investment
Manager post securitisation.

- £000
Assets under management . 1115718
Interest held in the Group’s balance sheet: ;
Available-for-sale financial investments ' 21,796
Total assets in the Group's balance sheet ’ 21,796
Off-balance sheet commitments made by the Group 9974
Group’s maximum exposure 31,770
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7. Intangible assets

Other

: intangible
Goodwill assets Total
Group £'000 £000 £'000
Cost at | April 2014 15,228 9,017 24,245
Additions 1,448 - 1,448
At 3| March 2015 16,676 9,017 * 25,693
Accumulated impairment losses and amortisation at | ‘April 2014 7,950 . 4728 12,678
Amortisation charge - 2,188 2,188
At 31 March 2015 7,950 6916 14,866
Net book value at 31 March 2015 8,726 2,101 10,827
Cost at | April 2013 14,778 9,017 23,795
Additions 450 - 450
At 31 March 2014 15,228 9,017 24,245
Accumulated impairment losses and amortisation at | April 2013 2,500 2,769 5,269
Amortisation charge - 1,959 1959
Imapirment charge _ 5,450 ) - 5,450
At 31 March 2014 7,950 4,728 12,678
Net book value at 3| March 2014 © 7,278 4,289 11,567

Included within the cost of goodwill as at 31 March 2015 is £9,786,000 (2014: £9,786,000) relating to the purchase of Lanebridge
Investment Management Limited in the year ended 31 March 2008. In prior periods the value of that goodwill was assessed using

the latest forecasts of Lanebridge Investment Management Limited, which indicated a delay in the expected future fee income

related to the timing of property sales, and applying a discount rate of 12%. This analysis indicated that the goodwilt was impaired
and management concluded that an impairment charge of £7,950,000 should be recognised. This assessment was repeated as at
31 March 2015 using updated forecasts which showed that no further impairment was necessary.

The remainder of goodwill relates to various acquisitions within the Five Arrows Leasing-Group. During the year, an 80%

interest in

Dash Commercial Finance Limited, an asset financing company, was purchased, including goodwill of £1,448,000. The purchase price
of £1,690,000 included £845,000 of contingent consideration based on management projections. However, this could increase up to
£4,000,000 over 5 years if a number of performance targets are met. :

Other intangible assets relate mainly to servicing rights recognised on the acquisition of Elgin Capital LLP a company that provides
investment management services for various investment funds.The present value of the future servicing rights will be amortlsed

over the servicing period as the fees from serwcmg are recognised.
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18. Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold  Cars, fixtures and Computer

improvements fittings equipment Total
Group £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 .
Cost at | April 2014 51,561 20,566 23,596 95,723
Acquisition of subsidiary - - - 20 20
Additions - 21 6411 201 . 6,733
Disposals . (2,880) (9.295) (12,175)
Amounts written off - (498) 37) (535)
Exchange differences - (339) 315) (175) . (829)
At 3} March 2015 51,343 23,284 14,310 88,937
Accumulated depreciation at | April 2014 12,256 8,849 18,692 39,797
Acquisition of subsidiary . - - 14 "4
Disposals - (1.914) (9.295) (11,209)
Depreciation charge ) 3,059 3,250 1,425 7734
Amounts written off . - (498) 37) (535)
Exchange differences ) (281) (95) (161) (537)
At 31 March 2015 . 15,034 9,592 10,638 35,264
Net book value at 31 March 2015 ’ 36,309 13,692 3,672 53,673
Cost at | April 2013 - : 51,662 19,983 32,823 104,468
Additions ) 139 5209 - 333 . 568l
Disposals ' (2) (4.049) (9.409) (13,460)
Amounts written off ) (64) - 6) 70)
Exchange differences o (174) (577) (145) (896)
At 31 March 2014 ' 51,561 20,566 23,596 95,723
Accumulated depreciation at | April 2013 : ) - 938l 9499 25517 44,397
Disposals - (2) (3327) (9,408) (12,737)
Depreciation charge : ’ 3,061 2,802 2,093 7956
Amounts written off ’ (64) - 6) (70)
Impairment charge o - - 619 . 619
Exchange differences (120) (125) (123) (368)
At 3| March 2014 . 12,256 8,849 18,692 39,797
Net book value at 31 March 2014 : ) 39,305 1,717 4,904 55,926

Included within the net book value of cars, fixtures and fittings for the Group as at 31 March 2015 is £7,387,000 (2014: £6,041,000)

relating to assets leased to customers under operating leases.
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18. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Leasehold  Cars, fixtures and Computer
: improvements fittings equipment Total
Company ’ £000 £000 £000 £'000
Cost at | April 2014 . 48,588 1431 18,703 68,722
Additions A ’ 14 43 - 57
Disposals - (26) (9.275) (9.301)
At 31 March 2015 . 48,602 1,448 9,428 59,478
Accumulated depreciation at | April 2014 . 9801 931 " 14410 25,142
Disposals - (20) (9.275) (9.295)
Depreciation charge ) 2,891 117 1,136 4,144
At 3| March 2015 12,692 1,028 6,271 19,991
Net book value-at 31 March 2015 35910 " 420 3,157 39,487
Cost at | April 2013 4 48,550 1,376 27985 77911
Additions 38 55 ’ 2 95
Disposals ) - - C(9284) (9.284)
At 31 March 2014 48,588 1,431 18,703 68,722
Accumulated dep}'eciation at | April 2013 6915 814 21,394 29,123
Disposals. - - (9,283) (9.283)
Depreciation charge 2,886 17 1,680 4,683
" Impairment charge - - 619 619
At 31 March 2014 9.801 931 14,410 25,142
Net book value at 31 March 2014 38,787 500 4,293 43,580
19. Other liabilities
2015 . 2015 2014 2014
Group Company Group Company
Note £'000 £000 £000 £000
Accounts payable 31,334 23,631 7436 7355
Traded loans awaiting settlement 724 724 7.304 7.304
Defined benefit pension liabilities - i 21 95,757 94,729 89,011 87819
Other liabilities 26,623 6,654 43,624 7,685
‘ 154,438 125,738 147,375 110,163

! Certain prior year amounts have been restated as explained in note | (page 22).
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20. Deferred income taxes

Deferred taxes are calculated on all temporary differences under the liability method using an effective tax rate of 20 per cent
(2014:20 per cent) as this was the rate substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

The movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:

-

2015 2015 2014 2014 °
Group Company Group Company
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
At | April 72,728 61,905 92,864 78,426
Acquisition of subsidiary . ) - - -
Recognised in income '
Income statement charge (11,474) (11,755) (12,025) (9.569)
Recognised in other comprehensive income ) '
Defined benefit pension arrangements 4,438 4,422 (5,156) (5.142)
Available-for-sale securities
~ Fair value measurement ’ (468) (468) 251 48
Cash flow hedges )
— Fair value measurement . ' A (03] ) (76) (76)
Tax losses created/(utilised) ' - 243 243 (1,782) (1,782)
Exchange differences (543) - (960) -
Other ' (1,750) - (388) -
At 3| March . 63,170 54,345 72,728 61,905
Deferred tax assets less liabilities are attributable to the following items:
2015 2015 2014 2014
~ Group Company Group Company
£'000 £000 £000 £000
Accelerated tax depreciation 10,125 6319 9,864 5,584
Deferred profit share arrangements ‘ 20875 16,595 22,586 18,828
Pension and other post-retirement benefits 18946 18,946 17,547 17,564
Available-for-sale securities (305) (305) 55 55
Tax losses 12,415 12,415 19,194 19,194
Other temporary differences ) 114 375 3482 680
63,170 54,345 72,728 61,905
The deferred tax (chargej/credit in the income statement comprises the foliowing temporary differences:
' , 2015, 2015 2014 2014
* Group Company Group Company
. £000 £000 £'000 £'000
Accelerated tax depreciation T 263 735 (897) 287
Deferred profit share arrangements (1.527) (2,233) (7.266) (6,037)
Available-for-sale securities : 108 108 141 14)
Pensions and other post-retirement benefits (3.040) (3.040) (85) (85)
Tax losses (7.022) (7,022) (3517) (3.346)
Other.temporary differences . ’ (256) (303) (401) (529)
(11,474) (11,755) (12,025) (9.569)

Deductible temporary differences relating to unutilised tax losses within the Group for which no deferred tax asset has been

recognised are £6,728,000 (2014: £228,000).

Deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised for the withholding tax that would be payable on the unremitted eamings of certain
subsidiaries and other interests as it is anticipated that such profits would qualify for exemption from UK taxation.The amount of

witholding taxes that would be payable should the retained earnings be remitted would be £nil (2014: £nil).
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21. Retirement benefit obligations

Defined benefit pension plans and other post-retirement benefits

The Group operates a pension scheme, the NMR Pension Fund (“the Fund"), for the benefit of employees of certain Rothschild
group companies in the United Kingdom, including the Company.The Fund comprises a defined benefit section, which closed

to new entrants in April 2003, and a defined contribution scheme established with effect from April 2003.The Group also has
£2,609,000 (2014: £2,541,000) of unfunded obligations in respect of pensions and other post-retirement benefits of which
£1,581,000 (2014: £1,349,000) relates to employees of the Company.

For the defined benefit section, benefits are based on actual service and final pensionable salary. The weighted average duration
of the expected benefit payments from the Fund is 20 years.The Fund is approved by HMRC for tax purposes, and is operated
separately from the Group and managed by independent trustees. The trustees are responsible for payment of the benefits and
managemenit of the Fund's assets. The Fund is subject to UK regulations, which require the Group and trustees to agree a funding
strategy and contribution schedule for the Fund.

As with most defined benefit schemes, the defined benefit section of the Fund ‘exposes the Group and Company to a number of
risks including longevity, inflation, interest rate and investment performance. These risks are mitigated by an investment strategy for
the Fund which aims to minimise the long term costs of the Fund. This is achieved by investing in a diversified selection of asset
classes, which aims to reduce the volatility of returns and also achieves a level of matching with the underlying liabilities. Overall, the
objective is to select assets which will generate income and capital growth to meet, together with new contributions, the cost of
current and future benefits payable by the Fund.

The latest formal actuarial valuation of the Fund was carried out as at 31 March 2013 and has been updated for IAS 19 (Revised)
purposes to 31 March 2015 by qualified independent actuaries. As required by IAS 19 (Revised), the values of the defined benefit
. obligation and current service cost have been measured using the projected unit credit method. The net charge to the income
" staternent comprises current and past service costs, the net interest charge on the net defined benefit liability and administration
expenses relating to the management of the pension funds. Remeasurement gains and losses are recognised in full, in the period in
which they occur, outside the income statement and presented in other comprehensive income.

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the balance sheet date were as follows:

Group and Company C 2015 2014 . 2013
Discount rate : . ) ‘ T 340% 4.50% 4.50%
Retail price inflation : . 3.00% 3.30% 3.40%
Consumer price inflation ) . 2.00% : 2.30% 2.40%
Expected rate of uncapped salary increases ’ 2.00% 200% 4.40%
Expected rate of increase in pensions in payment .

Capped at 5.0% per annum ) : . 290% 3.20% 3.30%
Capped at 2.5% per annum ’ 2.00% 220% 2.20%
Life expectancy of a pensioner aged 60 ’

Male ' ' 286 285 279
Female : - 29.5 294 285
Life expectancy of a future pensioner aged 60 in 20 years' time . . )

Male : 306 305 295
Female 307 306 0293

The defined benefit plan net liability calculation is sensitive to the actuarial assumptlons used above. Those that have the most.
significant impact on the measurement of the liability are as follows: _ . .

2015 2014
Group and Company : £'000 £'000
0.5% increase in discount rate decreases defined benefit obligations : 66,500 + 54,200
0.5% increase in price inflation increases defined benefit obligations 53,400 50,000

| year increase in life expectancy increases defined benefit obligations ’ 20,800 ’ 17,600

The sensitivities shown above reflect only the change in the assessed defined obligation for the Fund. In practice, any movement
leading to a change in the discount rate or price inflation is likely to be partially offset by a change in asset values, and the
corresponding overall impact on the net liability is therefore likely to be lower than the amounts above.
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21. Retirement benefit obligations (continUed) |

The movement in the net defined benefit obligation is as follows:

Net defined benefit

Defined benefit
Plan assets obligations obligation
Group Company Group Company Group  Company )
£000 . £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
At | April 2014 550,176 550,176  (639,187)  (637.995)  (89.011)  (87.819)
Current service cost (net of contributions ' ’
paid by other plan participants) - - (2918) (2.821) (2,918) (2.821)
Interest income/(cost) 24,804 24,804 (28,286) (28,286) (3.482) (3.482)
Remeasurements due to: : )
— actual return less interest on plan assets . 81,150 81,150 - - 81,150 81,150
- changes in financial assumptions ' - - (114,085) (114,085) (114,085) (114,085)
. — changes in demographic assumptions - - 6512 . 6512 6,512 6,512
— experience gains/(losses) - - 4,175 4312 4,175 4,312
Benefits paid (19.335) (19.071) 19,335 19071 - -
Contributions by the Group 22,843 22,579 - - 122,843 22,579
Costs/contributions relating to other plan participants 702 702 (702) (702) - -
Administration expenses (1.075) (1,075) - - (1.075) (1,075)
Exchange differences - - 134 - 134 -
. At 31 March 2015 659,265 659,265  (755,022) (753,994)  (95.757) (94,729)
Defined benefit Net defined benefit
Plan assets obligations obligation
Group Company Group Company Group  Company
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At | April 2013 535,290 535290  (635584)  (634381) (100294)  (99.091)
Current service cost (net of contributions )
paid by other plan’participants) ~ - (3,157) (3.036) (3.157) (3,036)
Past service costs - - 4,450 4,450 4,450 4,450
Interest income/(cost) 24,059 24,059 (28,164) (28,129) (4.105) - (4,070)
Remeasurements due to: .
- a'cﬂtual return less interest on plan assets (8,732) (8,732) - - (8,732) (8,732)
— changes in financial assumptions - - 9,721 9,721 9,721 9,721
— changes in demographic assumptions - - (6.652) (6,652) (6,652) (6,652)
- experience gains/(losses) - - 2,274 2212 2,274 2,212
Benefits paid (18,866) (18789) 18,866 18,789 - -
Contributions by the Group 18,397 18,320 - - 18,397 18,320
Costs/contributions relating to other plan participants 969 969 (569) (969) - -
Administration expenses ’ (941) %941) - - (941) (941)
Exchange differences - - 28 - 28 -
At 31 March 2014 550,176 550,176  (639,187) (637,995)  (89.011) (87.819)
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21. Retirement benefit obligations (cbntinued)

At 31 March, the fair value of plan assets comprised:

2015 2014
Group and Company | £'000 £'000
Quoted
Corporate bonds 91,844 81,509
Index-finked gitts 39,536 42,690
Liability-driven investments 121,272 65,674
Equities 215,720 190,070
Emerging market currency 16,871 24,292
Emerging market debt V19,835 19,800
Private markets 22,709 18,127
Multi-strategy alternative credit 13,427 -
Unquoted ~
Fund of hedge funds ‘ 56,252 51,721
" Private markets 49,156 51,795
Leveraged loans 6,589 -
Equities 673 647
Cash and net current assets 5381 3,851
659,265 550,176

Equities includes £673,000 (2014: £647,000) of shares in companies that are related parties of the Company.

The Company and Group have also entered into a trust arrangement for the benefit of the Fund giving security over certain Group
assets should various financial triggers be breached. Further information is provided in note 22 to the accounts.

Amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows:

2014

2015 2015 2014
. Group - Company Group Company
Note £'000 £'000 £000 £000
Employers’ part of current service cost 2918 2,821 3,157 3,036 -
Net interest cost 3482 3,482 4,105 4,070
Administration expenses 1,075 1,075 94| 94|
Past service costs - - (4,450) (4,450)
Total (included in staff costs). ’ 9 7,475 7,378 3,753 3,597
Amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive income: -
2015 2015 20i4 2014
. - Group Company Group. Company
- £000 £'000 £000 £000
Remeasurement losses recognised in the year (22.248) . @2.111) (3.389) (3.451)
Cumulative remeasurement losses recognised in the statement ’
of comprehensive income (196,823) (196.561) (174,575) (174.450)
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21. Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

Following the March 2013 triennial actuarial valuation of the Fund, the Group agreed a contribution plan with the trustees

to reduce the deficit in accordance with pensions regulation. The aim is to eliminate the pension deficit by 2023 with annual
contributions of £13.8m (increasing by 3.6% per annum). In addition, participating employers in the scheme have agreed to pay
33.5% of in-service members' pensionable salaries in respect-of future accrual. The arrangement will be reviewed in 2016, at the
next triennial actuarial valuation of the Fund.

It is estimated that total co_ntribution.s of £23.3 million will be paid to the defined benefit pension schemes in the year ending
31 March 2016, of which it is estimated that the Company will pay £22.2 million. J

Defined contribution schemes )
2015 2015 2014 2014

’ . Group Company Group Company
Note £'000 £'000 £000 £'000

Contributions paid 9 . 5,641 3.686 5.124 3328

! The prior year amount has been restated as explained in note-| (page 22).

These amounts represent contributions to the defined contribution section of the Fund and other defined contribution
pension arrangements. ’ ’

22. Contingent liabilities and commitments

2015 . 2015 2014 2014

Group - Company Group Company
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Guarantees .
Guarantees and irrevocable letters. of credit : 457 109,552 239 - 124,195
Commitments
‘Undrawn formal standby facilities, credit lines and other

commitments to lend 12,159 .34,404 6,281 23,147

From time to time the Group is involved in judicial proceedings or receives claims arising from the conduct of its business. Based
upon available information and, where appropriate, legal advice, the Directors do not believe that there are any potential or actual
proceedings or other claims which will have a material adverse impact on the Group's financial position.

Assets pledged:

. 2015 . 2014
Group and Company . £000 £'000
Investment securities . - 17,090

The Group and Company have entered into a trust arrangement for the benefit of the NMR Pension Fund which gives the pension
fund security over certain Group assets which would provide up to £50 million of value to the NMR Pension Fund in the event
that specific financial triggers are breached. The financial triggers relate to the Group’s ongoing viability and any breach is therefore
considered extremely unlikely. The Group retains control of the assets and income relating to them continues to be recognised in
the Group's results. ’
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23. Operating lease commitmerits

At 31 March 2015, the Group was obligated under a number of non-cancellable operating leases used primarily for business
- purposes. The significant premises leases usually include renewal options and escalation clauses in line with normal office rental
market terms.

Minimum commitments for non-cancellable leases of premises and equipment are as follows:

Premises Equipment

: : 2015 2014 2015 ) 2014
Group £000 £'000 £000 . £'000
Upto | year 14,646 14,858 208 216
 Between | and 5 years 56,154 60,048 : 365 129
More than 5 years 182,159 191,152 - -
252,959 266,058 573 345

Company
Upto | year 10,952 10,760 - -
Between | and 5 years . 44,522 43,647 : - . -
More than 5 years . 177.542 185,785 : - -
233,016 240,192 - . -

Since the balance sheet date, the Company has entered into a lease extens}non in respect of r its main London building, the effect of
which was to increase the expiry date of the lease by 5 years.

Operating expenses include operating lease rentals of £14,083,000 (2014: £14,265,000).

Minimum commitments receivable for non-cancellable leases of premises and equipment are as follows

-Premises Equipment
| ) j 2015 2014 2015 2014
Group £'000 £'000 © £000 - £'000
Upto | year ' ] 78 _ 78 1,487 1,591
Between | and 5 years 94 172 3,038 . 1,630
More than 5 years . - - 9l ' -
172 250 4,616 . 3,221
Company
Up to | year ' 78 ’ 78 - -
Between | and 5 years ) 94 172 ' - -
More than 5 years ’ - - - -
172 250 - -

N M Rothschild & Sons Limited | Registered Number 925279 | Page 73



Notes to the financial statements

(forming part of the financial statements)

24. Distributions

2015 2014
£'000 - £'000

Other Equity Interests
Perpetual floating rate subordinated loan (US$100 million) 474 518
Perpetual fixed rate subordinated loan (£75 million) 6,762 6762
Perpetual floating rate subordinated notes (€ | 50 million) 2,150 3,083
9,386 10,363
Tax credit thereon (1971) (2,384)
] 7,415 7.979

Ordinary Shares

Dividends paid 13,000 13,000
20,415 20,979

The dividends per ordinary share were 23p (2014: 23p).

25. Cash and cash equivalent»s

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following balances with an original maturity of

less than three months. :

2015 2015 2014 2014
Group Company Group -Company
£000° £000° - £000 £'000
Cash and balances at central banks . 639,247 639,240 ) 759.864 759,857
Loans and advances to banks : 91,042 7916 73,290 13351
730,289 647,156 833,154 773208
26. Transactions with related parties
Group ' '
Transactions with key management personnel (and their connected persons) of the Group are as follows:

o 2015 2014
At 3| March £'000 £000
Loans s 9
Deposits 754 575

Key management personnel are the directors of the Company and of parent companies.

Loans are made to directors for the purchase of travel season tickets and are provided on an interest-free basis. Deposits are taken

on normal commercial terms. ) :

2015 2014
£'000 £000
Key management personnel compensation
Short-term employee benefits . 6518 5911
Post-retirement benefits 21 8
Other long-term employee benefits 5177 5272
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26. Transactions with related parties (continued)

Amounts receivable from related parties of the Group are as follows:

2015 . 2014

_ Loans and Other Loans and Other

) advances assets advances assets

At 3| March - £'000 - £'000 £000 . £000
Amounts due from pérent companies 34346 ) 27 34324 201
Amounts due from joint ventures - 201 - .3
Amounts due from associated undertakings 1,051 9,712 62 7.641
Amounts due from other related parties 1,868 17,902 ) 2,942 263l

Other related parties are fellow subsidiaries of Rothschild Concordia SAS.

Amounts receivable include loans to related parties and amounts recoverable from related parties in respect of expenses incurred
on their behalf and services provided. Loans are made in the ordinary course of business and on substantially the same terms as

comparable transactions with third parties.

Amounts payable to related parties of the Group are as follows:

2015 ' 2014 )
Perpetual Other Perpetual Other -

Deposits instruments liabilities Deposits instruments liabilities

. At 31 March £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000

Amounts due to parent companies 12,161 - - 6917 - 962

Amounts due to joint ventures 4351, . - 10,860 4,506 - 8

Amounts due to associated undertakings 806 - 2,354 1,862 - 5.857

Amounts due to pension funds 6,564 - - 3,552 - -
Amounts due to other related parties : ’

- subordinated - 72610 - - 7 72610 -

— other . 282,438 - 6,540 335354 - 7747

Amounts payable include deposits taken and bank account balances held in the ordinary course of business and on substantially the

same terms as comparable transactions with third parties.
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26. Transactions with related partles (contlnued)

Guarantees from related parties of the Group are as follows:

. 2015 2014
At 31 March o : £000 £'000
Guarantees received from other related parties . 1,929 22,490

The Group has received guarantees from fellow subsidiaries of Rothschild Concordia SAS in respect of certain customer loans and

available-for-sale securities.

Amounts recognised in the income statement of the Group in respect of related party transactions are

as follows:

Parent Joint Associated Pension  Other related
companies ventures undertakings funds parties Total
£000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £000

2015 ' '
Interest receivable 1,036 - Co- - 74 1,110
Interest payable ’ (29) (14) (15) 8 (1,596) (1,662)
Fees-and commissions receivable 6,082 - 9,981 - 10290 26,353
Fees and commissions payable - (12944) . (3.374) - (3,865) (20,183)
Dividend income 717 1,841 2213 - 383 5,154 .
Rent payable . - - - - (9.975) (9975)
Recoverable expenses - - 922 - 4,932 - 5854
2014 ‘ A
Interest receivable C 897 - - - 95° 992
Interest payable 47) (12) (48) (13) (2.545) (2,665)
Fees and commissions receivable . 6,100 - 1,760 - - 5213 13,073
Fees and commissions payable - (4.515) (2,269) - (4.581) (11.365)
Dividend income . 757 1,178 5464 - - 990 8389
Rent payable L - - - - . (9,696) (9.696)
Recoverable expenses ' - - 3978 - 6510 10,488

Fees and commissions receivable/payable relate to transactions where the Group has worked in collaboration with related parties.

Company
Amounts receivable from related par‘ues of the Company are as follows:
20i15 2014
Loans and Other Loans and Other
advances assets advances assets
At 3| March £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Amounts due from parent companies ] 34,346 27, 34,324 201
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings 182,139 9.887 127,022 10,798
Amounts due from joint ventures - 125 - 622
Amounts due from associated undertakings 1,051 4,883 62 1012
Amounts due from other related parties 1.868 14,599 2942 10514

Amounts receivable include loans to related parties and amounts recoverable from related parties in respect of expenses incurred
on their behalf and services provided. Loans are made in the ordinary course of business and on substantially the same terms as

comparable transactions with third partles
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26. Transactions with related parties (continued)

Amounts payable to related parties of the Company are as follows:

2015 ) 2014

Perpetual Other Perpetual Other
. Deposits instruments liabilities Deposits instruments liabilities
At 31 March £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £'000
Amounts due to parent companjes . 12,16l - - 6917 - -
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings . .
- subordinated - sips -2 s;ps -
— other . 13,768 .- 8,309 6,861 - 5441
Amounts due to joint ventures 4,351 . - 10,855 9012 - -
Amounts due to associated undertakings 261 - 678 493 - 1819
Amounts due to pension funds 6,564 - - 13,552 - -
Amounts due to other related parties
- subordinated - 72610 - - 72610 -
— other 282,438 - 2927 335354 - 3718

Amounts payable include deposits taken and bank account balances held in the ordinary course of business and on substantially the
same terms as comparable transactions with third parties. .

Guarantees made on behalf of and received from related parties of the Company are as follows:

. . 2015 2014
At 31 March £000 . £000
Guarantees made on behalf of subsidi'ary undertakings 109,095 123955
Guarantees received from other related parties 1929 22,490

The Company.has guaranteed £109,095,000 (2014: £123,955,000) of perpetual floating rate subordinated notes issued by
Rothschilds Continuation Finance PLC.The issue proceeds have been placed on deposit with the Company on terms similar to
those of the notes issued.

The Company has received guarantees from a fellow subsidiary of Rothschild Concordia SAS in respect of certain customer loans
and available-for-sale securities. .

Commitments provided to related parties of the Company are as follows:

2015 2014,
At 31 March £000 £'000
Undrawn credit commitments - ' 22,245 16,866
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26. Transactions with related parties (continued)

The Company has entered into a lease agreement with a fellow subsidiary of Rothschild Concordia SAS for the rental of office
space.The lease agreement expires in 2035 and is on normal commercial terms. :

Amounts recognised in the income statement of the Company in respect of related party transactions are as follows:

Other

Parent Subsidiary Joint  Associated Pension related
companies undertakings -ventures undertakings funds parties Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
2015
Interest receivable 1,036 4,601 - - - 74 5711
Interest payable 29) (16) (14) - )] (1,596) (1.663)
Fees and commissions receivable ’ 5988 " 8,689 - 6071 - 10,290 31,038
Fees and commissions payable - (4333) (12,944) (1,305) - (3.865) (22,447)
Dividend income 89l 11,900 1,841 2213 - 383 17,028
Rent payable - - - - - (9.975) (9.975)
Recoverable expenses - (1.775) - 1,128 - 6,674 6,027
2014
Interest receivable 897 3517 ' - - - © 95 4,509
Interest payabie . . (26) - (23) - (13) (2,545) (2:607)
Fees-and commissions receivable 6,100 6,165 - 496 - 5213 17974
Fees and commissions payable - (7.946) (9,030) (2,137) - 4581y . (23694)
Dividend income 740 1 1,800 2,356 2,204 - 990 18,090
Rent payable o - - - - - (9.696) (9.696)
Recoverable expenses - (3.239) - 901 - 8212 5874 .

Fees and commissions receivable/payable relate to transactions where the C?mpany has worked in collaboration with other group companies.
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27. Non-controlling interests

Parts of the Group's income, net assets and distributions are attributable to non-controlling interests ("NCI"). These arise from the

following sources:

Ownership Profit

-

R Net assets Dividends
Year ended Country of interest Description of attributable attributable paid to
31 March 2015 residence  held by NCI - business to NCI £000 to NCI £'000 NCI £000
“Rothschild Europe 8Y subgroup  The Netherlands 50% Financial advisory 11,084 25,526 (4,284)
Other UK 20% Asset finance | 62 -
' 11,085 25,588 (4.284)
Summarised financial information for the Rothschild Europe BV subgroup is as follows:
2015
£000
Income statement information:
Net fee and commission income 113,143
Profit after tax 21,660
Balance sheet information:
Balance at banks 66,452
Other assets 50,449
Other liabilities (66,627)
Net Assets 50,274
The movement in the net assets attributable to non-controlling interests is as follows:
' 2015 2014
£'000 £000
At | April 21,206 15,181
Acquisition of subsidiary 6l -
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests ' : 11,085 . 9,806
Remeasurement gaihs/(losses) ' (67) 27
Equity settled share-based payments 51 26
Dividends ) (4.284) (3.291)
Exchange (2/470) (543)
At 31 March 25,582 21,206
28. Share capital
2015 2014
Authorised . 199,900,000 199,900,000
Allotted, called up and fully paid ordinary shares of £1 each ’ 57,654,551 57,654,551

N M Rothschild & Sons Limited | Registered Number 925279 | Page 79



Notes to the financial statements

(forming part of the financial statements)

29. Perpetual instruments

2015 ’20IS 2014 2014

Group Company Group Company

£000 £000 £'000 £'000

Perpetual fixed rate subordinated notes 9% (£75 million) . 48,750 | 48,750 © 48750 48,750
Perpetual floating rate subordinated notes (€150 million) 51,725 51,725 51,725 51,725
Perpetual floating rate subordinated notes (US$100 million) 23,860 23,860 23,860 23,860

At 3| March . . 124,335 124,335 124,335 124,335

30. Principal subsidiary undertakings

The principal subsidiary undertakings of the Company are detailed below. All the principal subsidiary undertakings are regi;stered
in England and Wales except where otherwise indicated. The Company's remaining subsidiary undertakings are not materlal and
accordingly no disclosure has been made in respect of these entities.

Percentage held

Five Arrows Leasing Group Limited (Lease portfolio management) ' ) 100
Five Arrows Leasing Limited (Asset finance) 100
Five Arrows Business Finance plc (Asset finance) . . 100
Specialist Fleet Services Finance Limited (Contract hire and maintenance) 100
City Business Finance Limited (Asset finance) 100
Dash Commercial Finance Limited (Asset finance) . : 80
Rothschilds Continuation Finance PLC (Finance company) 100
Lanebridge Investment Management Limited (Property investment management) 100
Elgin Capital LLP (Investment fund management services) 100
Rothschild Europe BV (Financial advisory company — incorporated in the Netherlands), 50
which owns the following subsidiaries: :
Rothschild GmbH (Financial advisory company — incorporated in Germany) N 100
Rothschild SpA (Financial advisory company — incorporated in Htaly) ' 90
RCF Polska sp.z o.0. (Financial advisory company — incorporated in Poland) 100
Rothschild Portugal Limitada (Financial advisory company — incorporated in Portugal) 100
RCF (Russia) BV (Financial advisory company — incorporated in Russia) ) 100
Rothschild SA (Financial advisory company — incorporated in Spain) 98
Rothschild (Middle East) Limited (Financial advisory company — incorporated in Dubai) : 100
Rothschild Australia Limited (Financial advisory company — incorporated in Australia) 100

Arrow Capital Limited (Investment holding company — incorporated in Australia) 100

The Cofnﬁany's investments in subsidiary undertakings were held at historical cost of £43,547,000 (2014: £43,547,000) less
impairment provisions of £3,525,000 (2014: £3,525,000).

31. Parent undertaking and ultimate holding company |

The largest group in which the results of the Company are consolidated is that headed by Rothschild Concordia SAS, incorporated
in France.The smallest group in which they are consolidated is that headed by Paris Orléans SCA, a French public limited
partnership. The accounts are available on Paris Orléans' website at www.paris-orteans.com.
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32. Remuneration of directors .

2015 ' .2014
. £'000 £'000
Directors’ emoluments ) 2429 1,867
Amounts receivable under long term profit share schemes ’ 200 193
2,629 2,060
Pension contributions to money purchase schemes L ’ ’ 21 : I8
) 2,650 2,078
The emoluments of the highést paid director were £815,000 (2014: £850,000).

. 2015 2014

Retirement benefits are accruing to the following number of directors under )
Money purchase schemes 2 2

Defined benefit schemes ' : ! - .

N M Rothschild & Sons Limited | Registered Number 925279 | Page 81



